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RESALE CERTIFICATE 

Date: February 7, 2018 

To: Abra Edwards 

From: Downtown I and II Condominium 

Re: 1308 12
th

 Street, NW, Unit C

Pursuant to Section 42-1904.11 of the District of Columbia Condominium Act, as 

Amended. The Association hereby states as follows: 

1. A. The status of assessments with respect to the above referenced

Condominium Unit is as follows: 

Current Assessment Due………………..…$_  176.37    ___ 

Reserve Assessment…………………...…. $_  114.81__      

Special Assessment………………………. $__0.00 ____ 

Parking …………………………………....$__ 0.00_______ 

TOTAL DUE     $_291.18 

Assessments, fees and charges for the current 

Fiscal year not yet due, however, is to be paid 

On the first day of each month in the monthly 

Increment of …………………………………. 

  $291.18 

     The Association levies annual assessments, payable in equal monthly installments, to 

pay common expenses. Special assessments may also be levied for the same purpose. 

1. The Condominium Instruments do not create any rights of first refusal or other

restraints on free alienability of any Condominium Units , unless otherwise

stated below:

2. There is a balance in reserves for capital expenditures, contingencies and

improvements of approximately $271,802.54. Of that balance, the amounts

shown below, if any, have been designated by the Board of Directors for the

following specific projects:  None at this time.

3. Enclosed is a copy of the most recently completed audited financial statements

for 2016 and current operating budget of the Association for the year 2017.

The Board is in the process of preparing the 2018 budget.  Upon completion, it

will be sent to all owners of record.

4. There are no judgements against the Association nor any pending suits

(excluding collection cases against unit owners) in which the Association is a

party except as follows:
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5. The Association holds hazard, property damage and liability insurance policies 

covering the common elements and the units as required by the Bylaws and 

the Condominium Act. It is recommended that each unit owner obtain 

insurance covering property damage to betterment and improvements installed 

in the unit and personal property contained therein (not covered by the 

Association policy) as well as insurance covering personal liability. You are 

urged to consult with your insurance agent as to the insurance you should 

obtain. The name and telephone number of the insurance agent for the 

Association is Associated Insurance at 301.812.1200. A Certificate of 

Insurance can be obtained from the agent. 

6. The Association has no knowledge of whether improvements or alterations 

made to the Condominium unit or the limited common elements thereto are in 

violation of the Condominium Instruments except as follows: 

7. There is no leasehold estate affecting the Condominium. 

8. Enclosed is a copy of the Declaration, Bylaws, and Rules and Regulations of 

the Condominium, including all amendments.  The Association is currently in 

the process of reviewing and amending the bylaws.  The final documents will 

be provided to al owners of record at the time of approval. 

9. All owners are reminded of changes that went into effect with revisions to the 

DC Condominium Act.  A unit owner shall be held liable to the full extent 

permissible under applicable DC law or regulation, including the DC 

Condominium Act, for any damage or destruction of a portion of the 

condominium originating from such unit owner’s unit.  Please be sure that you 

notify your personal homeowners insurance of this provision. 

10. The Association has a rental cap of 40%.  At no time can more than 40% of 

the units be rented.  Please be sure to contact this office prior to attempting to 

rent your unit. 

11. There is a $100 new account setup fee paid to the property management 

company. 

 

 The information contained in this Certificate, issued pursuant to Section  

 42-1904.11 of the Condominium Act, as amended, is based on the best  

 knowledge and belief of the Association and is current as of the date hereof. 

  

 The Association may charge a fee for the preparation of this Certificate as  

 Allowed by law. 

   

 Dated this________day of _________________, 2018 

 

 By:___________________________________ 

       Officer 

 

CONTACT THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO 

SETTLEMENT TO ENSURE THAT ALL INFORMATION IS CURRENT. 

 

AFTER SETTLEMENT, PLEASE SEND A COPY OF THE SETTLEMENT SHEET 

TO THE FOLLOWING ADRESS SO THAT THE ASSOCIATION MAY UPDATE 

ITS RECORDS.  
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FINANCIALS 



ASSETS

1001 Cash Operating $      79,132.08

1141 SunTrust -  Money Market 192,670.46

_______________

TOTAL CASH $     271,802.54

CURRENT ASSETS

_______________

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ .00

TOTAL ASSETS $     271,802.54

===============

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

_______________

Subtotal Current Liab. $ .00

RESERVES:

3311 Replacement Reserve $     255,937.45

3339 Allowance for non-payment 3,000.00

_______________

Subtotal Reserves $     258,937.45

EQUITY:

3452 Retained Earnings/Unappr. $      15,220.65

Current Year Net Income/(Loss) (2,355.56)

_______________

Subtotal Equity $      12,865.09

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY $     271,802.54

===============
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Balance Sheet

As of 01/31/18



INCOME:

04104     Condominium Fees                  10,200.98       9,381.33         819.65      10,200.98       9,381.33         819.65     112,576.00

04114     Reserve                            5,997.44       6,107.08        (109.64)       5,997.44       6,107.08        (109.64)      73,285.00

04128     Parking Fees                         397.80         397.92           (.12)         397.80         397.92           (.12)       4,775.00

04302     Interest Revenue                       8.18           4.17           4.01           8.18           4.17           4.01          50.00

04392     Non-payment Allowance                   .00        (125.00)         125.00            .00        (125.00)         125.00      (1,500.00)

                                       ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

          Subtotal Income                   16,604.40      15,765.50         838.90      16,604.40      15,765.50         838.90     189,186.00

 

 

EXPENSES

 

Administrative Expenses

05002     Management Fee                     1,957.67       1,957.67            .00       1,957.67       1,957.67            .00      23,492.00

05004     Legal                                 16.38          66.67          50.29          16.38          66.67          50.29         800.00

05006     Audit/Tax Returns                    150.00         291.67         141.67         150.00         291.67         141.67       3,500.00

05012     Postage, Printing                    160.07          29.17        (130.90)         160.07          29.17        (130.90)         350.00

05038     Bank Charges                            .00           8.33           8.33            .00           8.33           8.33         100.00

05098     Miscellaneous                           .00           8.33           8.33            .00           8.33           8.33         100.00

                                       ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

          Administrative Expenses            2,284.12       2,361.84          77.72       2,284.12       2,361.84          77.72      28,342.00

 

Utilities

05102     Electricity                          163.27         150.75         (12.52)         163.27         150.75         (12.52)       1,809.00

05108     Water/Sewer                        4,774.24       1,875.00      (2,899.24)       4,774.24       1,875.00      (2,899.24)      22,500.00

                                       ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

               Utilities                     4,937.51       2,025.75      (2,911.76)       4,937.51       2,025.75      (2,911.76)      24,309.00

 

Contracted Services

05202     Trash                                   .00         641.67         641.67            .00         641.67         641.67       7,700.00

05204     Grounds/Landscaping                     .00         416.67         416.67            .00         416.67         416.67       5,000.00

05206     Exterminating                        724.38         250.00        (474.38)         724.38         250.00        (474.38)       3,000.00

05230     Cleaning                             722.32         725.00           2.68         722.32         725.00           2.68       8,700.00

05263     Fire Alarm Equipment                 154.13         137.50         (16.63)         154.13         137.50         (16.63)       1,650.00

                                       ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

               Contracted Services           1,600.83       2,170.84         570.01       1,600.83       2,170.84         570.01      26,050.00

 

Repairs & Maintenance

05302     Electrical                              .00          62.50          62.50            .00          62.50          62.50         750.00

05306     Plumbing                                .00          83.33          83.33            .00          83.33          83.33       1,000.00

05321     Roof                                    .00          41.67          41.67            .00          41.67          41.67         500.00

05322     Gutter                                  .00          41.67          41.67            .00          41.67          41.67         500.00

05326     Grounds/Landscaping                     .00          41.67          41.67            .00          41.67          41.67         500.00

05328     Condensate Drain Cleaning               .00         250.00         250.00            .00         250.00         250.00       3,000.00

05332     Snow Removal                       1,052.22         333.33        (718.89)       1,052.22         333.33        (718.89)       4,000.00
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Income/Expense Statement
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Current Period Year-To-Date Yearly

Account Description Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Budget



05342     General Repairs                     (125.00)         333.33         458.33        (125.00)         333.33         458.33       4,000.00

05377     Light Bulbs & Fixtures                  .00          41.67          41.67            .00          41.67          41.67         500.00

05386     Locks, Keys, Doors, Closures         220.00          41.67        (178.33)         220.00          41.67        (178.33)         500.00

______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

     Repairs & Maintenance         1,147.22       1,270.84         123.62       1,147.22       1,270.84         123.62      15,250.00

Personnel Services

______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

     Personnel Services                 .00            .00            .00            .00            .00            .00            .00

Interest Expense

______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

     Interest Expense                   .00            .00            .00            .00            .00            .00            .00

Depreciation & Amortization

______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

Depreciation & Amortization             .00            .00            .00            .00            .00            .00            .00

Insuance, Taxes & License

05910     Insurance - Master Policy          2,883.20       1,808.33      (1,074.87)       2,883.20       1,808.33      (1,074.87)      21,700.00

05930     Taxes - Corp Inc. Taxes                 .00          20.83          20.83            .00          20.83          20.83         250.00

______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

     Insurance, Taxes & Licen       2,883.20       1,829.16      (1,054.04)       2,883.20       1,829.16      (1,054.04)      21,950.00

Reserve Contributions

06311     Replacement Reserve                6,107.08       6,107.08            .00       6,107.08       6,107.08            .00      73,285.00

______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

     Reserve Contributions         6,107.08       6,107.08            .00       6,107.08       6,107.08            .00      73,285.00

TOTAL EXPENSES                    18,959.96      15,765.51      (3,194.45)      18,959.96      15,765.51      (3,194.45)     189,186.00

Current Year Net  Income/(loss      (2,355.56)           (.01)      (2,355.55)      (2,355.56)           (.01)      (2,355.55)            .00

============== ============== ============== ============== ============== ============== ==============
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BUDGET 



Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

INCOME

MEMBER ASSESSMENTS

4104 Condominium Fees $104,250.00 $108,198.00 $109,191.00 $109,191.00 $109,191.00 $112,576.00 

4128 Parking Fees $4,445.00 $4,590.00 $4,631.00 $4,631.00 $4,631.00 $4,775.00 

4114 Reserve Contribution $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $59,005.00 $73,285.00 $73,285.00 

4121 Special Reserve Contribution $55,754.00 $53,285.00 $53,285.00 $14,280.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Allowance for non-payment $(1,500.00) $(1,500.00) $(1,500.00) $(1,500.00) $(1,500.00) $(1,500.00)

TOTAL MEMBER ASSESSMENTS $182,949.00 $184,573.00 $185,607.00 $185,607.00 $185,607.00 $189,136.00

OTHER REVENUE

4302 Interest Revenue $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $100.00 $50.00 $50.00 

Utility Rebate

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $100.00 $50.00 $50.00 

TOTAL REVENUE $183,549.00 $185,173.00 $186,207.00 $185,707.00 $185,657.00 $189,186.00

Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

OPERATING EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

5002 Management Fee $19,879.00 $20,475.00 $21,089.00 $21,722.00 $22,808.00 $23,492.00 

5004 Legal $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

5006 Audit/Tax Returns $2,362.00 $2,480.00 $2,480.00 $2,850.00 $2,850.00 $3,500.00 

5012 Postage/printing $500.00 $400.00 $400.00 $450.00 $450.00 $350.00 

5038 Bank Charges $250.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $100.00 $100.00 

5098 Miscellaneous $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE $24,091.00 $24,605.00 $25,219.00 $26,272.00 $27,308.00 $28,542.00

UTILITIES

5102 Electricity $2,500.00 $2,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,890.00 $1,890.00 $1,809.00 

5108 Water/Sewer $18,500.00 $18,500.00 $18,500.00 $19,500.00 $19,500.00 $20,500.00 

TOTAL UTILITIES $21,000.00 $20,500.00 $20,300.00 $21,390.00 $21,390.00 $22,309.00

CONTRACTED SERVICES

5202 Trash $9,100.00 $9,100.00 $9,100.00 $9,100.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 

5204 Grounds/Landscaping $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 

5206 Exterminating $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $1,900.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 

5230 Cleaning $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $6,800.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 

5263 Fire Alarm Equipment $1,100.00 $1,350.00 $1,350.00 $1,350.00 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 

Floors & Carpet $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES $22,850.00 $23,100.00 $23,700.00 $24,150.00 $24,400.00 $24,400.00

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

5302 Electrical $750.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 
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5306 Plumbing $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 

Security $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

5321 Roof $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 

5322 Gutter $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 

5326 Grounds/Landscaping $900.00 $900.00 $900.00 $900.00 $900.00 $500.00 

5332 Snow Removal $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $4,000.00 

5342 General Repairs $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $4,000.00 

5377 Light Bulbs & Fixtures $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 

5386 Locks,Keys,Door Closures $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $750.00 $750.00 $500.00 

Parking Lot/Garage $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

5389 Dryer Vent Cleaning $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 

Chimney Cleaning $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

5328 Condensate Drain Cleaning $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $3,000.00 

TOTAL REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE $18,550.00 $18,800.00 $18,800.00 $19,250.00 $21,750.00 $18,700.00

INSURANCE, TAXES & LICENSES

5910 Insurance-Master Policy $20,670.00 $21,700.00 $21,700.00 $21,700.00 $21,700.00 $21,700.00 

5930 Taxes-Corp Inc Taxes $250.00 $350.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 

5990 Licenses $500.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

TOTAL INSURANCE, TAXES & LICEN $21,420.00 $22,550.00 $21,950.00 $21,950.00 $21,950.00 $21,950.00

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE $107,911.00 $109,555.00 $109,969.00 $113,012.00 $116,798.00 $115,901.00

Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

6311 Replacement Reserve Contribution $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,600.00 $58,415.00 $68,859.00 $73,285.00

6309 Special Assessment Contribution $55,638.00 $55,638.00 $55,638.00 $14,280.00

        Roof Mortgage $(70,604.00) $(70,604.00) $(70,604.00) $(23,534.56) $0.00 $0.00

Other Reserve Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL REPLACEMENT RESERVES $5,034.00 $5,034.00 $5,634.00 $49,160.44 $68,859.00 $73,285.00

TOTAL INCOME $183,549.00 $185,173.00 $186,207.00 $185,707.00 $185,657.00 $189,186.00

LESS RESERVE CONTRIBUTION $75,638.00 $75,638.00 $76,238.00 $72,695.00 $68,859.00 $73,285.00

LESS OPERATING EXPENSES $107,911.00 $109,555.00 $109,969.00 $113,012.00 $116,798.00 $115,901.00

NET INCOME (LOSS) $0.00 $(20.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00



AUDIT 



Principals 
Howard A. Goldklang, CPA, MBA 
Donald E. Harris, CPA 
Anne M. Sheehan, CPA 
S. Gail Moore, CPA 

June 27, 2017 

Board of Directors 
Downtown I and II Condominium 

Dear Board Members: 

® I kl n roup 
CPAs, P.C. 

1801 Robert Fulton Drive, Suite 200 

Reston, VA 20191 

Associate Principals 
JeremyW. Powell, CPA 
Renee L. Watson, CPA 

Managers 
Allison A. Day, CPA 

MatthewT. Stiefvater, CPA 
Sheila M. Lewis, CPA 

Enclosed, please find the draft audit for Downtown I and II Condominium for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

• Please sign and date the enclosed representation letter. The letter should be signed by either 
the President or Treasurer of the Association and the management agent representative. This 
letter needs to be returned to our office before the audit can be finalized. 

• Please send the Association's most recent financial statements (which should include the 
balance sheet and income statement) to our office with the signed representation letter. We 
are requesting this information to comply with auditing standards. 

• Please return the signed representation letter and most recent financial statements to 
our office within 60 days from the date of this letter. This information can be mailed, 
faxed or emailed to our office. Our email address is RLs@GGroupCPAs.com. 

Ifwe do not receive the above information within 60 days from the date of this letter, we may need to 
perform additional audit procedures to satisfy ourselves that no material events have occurred from 
the date that we completed our audit fieldwork through the date that we receive the signed 
representation letter. These additional procedures would include examining the bank statements, 
minutes, financial statements, general ledger and would also include inquiries of management and the 
board of directors. We will bill the Association for these additional audit procedures at our 
hourly rates. 

Please do not hesitate to contact us if there are any questions regarding the draft audit. 

Sincerely, 

GOLDKLANG GROUP CPAs, P.C. 

phone 703 3919003 fax 703 391 9004 www.GGroupCPAs.com 



Principals 
Howard A. Goldklang, CPA, MBA 
Donald E. Harris, CPA 
Anne M. Sheehan, CPA 
S. Gail Moore, CPA 

1801 Robert Fulton Drive, Suite 200 

Reston, VA 20191 

INFORMATION INCLUDED WITH THE AUDIT 

Associate Principals 
Jeremy W. Powell, CPA 
Renee L. Watson, CPA 

Managers 
Allison A. Day, CPA 

Matthew T. Stiefvater, CPA 
Sheila M. Lewis, CPA 

COVER LETTER - The audit report is issued in draft for the Association to review. The cover letter 
explains what information must be returned to our office before the audit report (and other letters) 
can be finalized. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - This is our report on the Association's financial statements. 
Once finalized, the Association may distribute this document, along with the audited financial 
statements, notes to financial statements and any supplementary information in its entirety to 
members, potential members, etc. 

MANAGEMENT LETTER - The management letter is not a required communication under auditing 
standards, but is a by-product of the audit. We generally issue a management letter to communicate 
our comments and recommendations. Use of this letter is restricted to the board of directors and 
management. 

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE UNDER AU-C §260 - Under the 
Clarified Statements of Auditing Standards AU-C §260 we are required to communicate audit matters 
that, in our professional judgment, may be significant and relevant to those charged with governance 
of the Association. Use of this letter is restricted to the board of directors and management. 

COMMUNICATION OF SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES AND/OR MATERIAL WEAKNESSES UNDER AU-C 

§265 - Under the Clarified Statements of Auditing Standards AU-C §265, we are required to 
communicate in writing any significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses in the Association's 
internal controls. Use of this letter is restricted to the board of directors and management. If we did 
not note any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, no letter will be issued. 

1REPRESENTATION LETTER - The representation letter is a letter from the Association to us 
confirming that to the best of your knowledge and belief all information was provided or disclosed to 
us. This letter needs to be signed by the President or Treasurer of the Association and the 
management agent representative. The letter needs to be returned to our office before the audit can 
be finalized. 

ADJUSTED TRIAL BALANCE AND ADJUSTING JOURNAL ENTRIES - These are the proposed audit 
adjustments for the period under audit. 

phone 703 3919003 fax 703 3919004 www.GGroupCPAs.com 



Go Id kl an g g ~p~~p~_P ® 

Principals 
Howard A. Goldklang, CPA, MBA 
Donald E. Harris, CPA 
Anne M. Sheehan, CPA 
S. Gail Moore, CPA 

To the Board of Directors of 
Downtown I and II Condominhun 

1801 Robert Fulton Drive, Suite 200 
Reston, VA 20191 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Associate Principals 
Jeremy W. Powell, CPA 
Renee L. Watson, CPA 

Managers 
Allison A. Day, CPA 

MatthewT. Stiefvater, CPA 
Sheila M. Lewis, CPA 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Downtown I and II Condominium, which 
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of income, 
members' equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management is ~espopsible fur th,b pr~par~ti6ii''amlJ~~<gresentati6n of thes~ fi~ancial statements in 
accordance with\ accpuntin~ pri,ncipl~s generally/acqep1ed }n thy UJtited ('Sta~~s of America; this 
includes the des~gn, itJJ.pl$p1~~tation, jmd plaintenFce,,~! int~w.al 9ontrol re+ev~!;to the preparation 
and fair presentationoFffoancial statements that arefree frominat'erialmisstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

phone 703 3919003 fax703 3919004 www.GGroupCPAs.com 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Downtown I and II Condominium as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the 
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Disclaimer of Opinion on Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that information on 
future major repairs and replacements on page 13 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Reston, 
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DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 192,744 

Assessments Receivable - Net 262 

Special Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Insurance 1,058 

Total Assets $ 194,064 

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 
-~----··· - .. _,._,_,;; .. •y_7-_.-,e 

:•;::,-::-'"';'.:;;,,-:_ c•,_>'-'.::--, 

Accmints Ray ab l~\ 
-~ :-: ~ 

Prepaid As$essments 

Prepa~d Spfcial Aysessrent~ 

Total Liabilities 

Replacement Reserves 

Unappropriated Members' Equity 

Total Members' Equity 

Total Liabilities 

$' 

$~ 

$ 

$ 

:[:~'~1 "\ 

} 3j84' 
\;.~·.-:1':.:· ' ._•,' ,-

2,'3~4 

1,6~6 

7,3S)4 

179,193 

7,477 

186,670 

2015 

$ 131,202 

303 

53 

5,572 

$ 137,130 

$ 5,330 

2,796 

1,656 

$ 9,782 

$ 112,834 

14,514 

$ 127,348 

and Members' Equity $ 194,064 $ 137,130 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
3 



DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

INCOME: 

Assessments 

Special Assessments 

Interest 

Bad Debt Recovery 

Other 

Total Income 

EXPENSES: 

Administrative: 
Ma~~g~~~fi:d:f;es····, ... , ... 

-· .. ·, 

Legall 

Auditand 'fax Preparatipn 

Postage anµ Printifig 

Bank ~harges 
Misc~llane6us<···. · 

Total Administrative 

Utilities: 

Electricity 

Water and Sewer 

Total Utilities 

Contracted Services: 

Trash Removal 

Landscaping 

Exterminating 

Cleaning 

Fire Equipment 

Total Contracted Services 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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2016 

$ 186,952 $ 

46 

768 

$ 187,766 $ 

$ 30,489 $ 

$ 1,653 $ 

28,418 

$ 30,071 $ 

$ 7,957 $ 

6,349 

3,278 

7,828 

1,494 

$ 26,906 $ 

2015 

172,689 

14,280 

41 

1,124 

57 

188,191 

21,722 

2,227 

2,950 

215 

99 

161 

27,374 

1,543 

22,223 

23,766 

8,412 

6,432 

1,713 

7,078 

1,649 

25,284 



DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 
(CONTINUED) 

Repairs and Maintenance: 

Electrical 

Plumbing 

Snow Removal 

General Repairs and Maintenance 

Keys, Locks and Door Closures 

Total Repairs and Maintenance 

Insurance, Bad Debt, and Income Taxes: 

Insurance 

Bad Debt 

Incot~-e''f'axes·,:~', ·· · 
7-': :: ·~\ -;-

f o tal ;{nsuraqce, Bad.._,..,..,,_ ............... "" ....... ,...,,_,. ...... ...,_ ,.L .......... ~ .... 

,.. r: 

Total Expensbs 
.. / i•/ ,,. ' 

, .. ~et1d66fil~ b~f ore '--''""'· ........ ., ....... .._, .... 

to Reserves and Amortization 

Contribution to Reserves 

Net Income (Loss) 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$.) 

2016 

1,141 

993 

4,040 

11,796 

627 

$ 

2015 

1,655 

4,516 

10,205 

17,860 

1,258 

18,597 $ 35,494 

19,317 $ 20,339 

314 

250 
" ·-

19,88}' :'$,, 20,589 

$ 125,944 $ 132,507 

$ 

$ 

61,822 

(68,859) 

(7,037) 

$ 55,684 

(72,695) 

$ (17,011) 



DOWNTOWNIANDilCONDOMINIUM 

STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS' EQUITY 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER31, 2016 AND 2015 

Total 

Unappropriated Total 

Balance as of December 31, 2014 

Additions: 

Contribution to Reserves 

Special Assessment 

Deductions: 

Loan Interest 

Net Loss 

Addition: 

Contribution to 

Deductions: 

Reserve S:R!4Y 
Net Loss 

Balance as of December 31, 2016 

Replacement 

Reserves 

$ 40,297 

58,415 

14,280 

(158) 

$ 112,834 

$ 179,193 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

Members' 

Equity 

31,525 

(17,011) 

7,477 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Members' 

Equity 

71,822 

58,415 

14,280 

(158) 

(17,011) 

127,348 

68,859 

(2,500) 

(7,037) 

186,670 



DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER31, 2016 AND 2015 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES: 

Net Income (Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Bad Debt Expense (Recovery) 

Decrease (Increase) in: 

Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Insurance 

Increase (Decrease) in: 

$ 

2016 

(7,037) $ 

314 

(273) 

4,514 

2015 

(17,011) 

(1,124) 

1,419 

(1,698) 

".l\9S9,1lnt~ ~_ayable CL9A§) 2, 160 
· PrepaifAsse\ssm~~ts ·· (4~;), I 46 

Ne~ Cash flows! fro1?1 Op~ratihg _t\~ti;viti~s · . _$---""-'-"----'('""""'4; ___ 8'7_0-=J ,=' $'c· ",: (16,108) 
::.~ .ii ~; _;f ····.·· \ .: ... 

cAsH F'Lows FRdM INVESTING AcTiv1tms·: 

Rec~tvid frJm As{:ssfu,:nts ~esJrves) 
. ·:.~_,, . . ' .. . ~··· .. -·· ·: ·-·· ·..:-· ~ .. ,._..;; " ..•.. ·-,~- :;-:.. . .. -- . . ..:.: .. '.~ 

68·,~.?9 
c, $ ·. ·,::? 58,415 

Received from Special Assessment (Reserves) 53 11,567 

Disbursed for Reserve Expenditures (2,500) (158) 

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities $ __ ____; __ 66,412 $ 69,824 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Disbursed for Loan Payable $ $ (15,340) 

Net Change in Cash· and Cash Equivalents $ 61,542 $ 38,376 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 131,202 92,826 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 192,744 $ 131,202 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 

Cash Paid for Income Taxes 

Cash Paid for Interest 

$ 

$ 

250 $ 250 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS: 

The Condominium is an association organized under the laws of the District of 
Columbia for the purposes of preserving and maintaining the common areas of the 
Association. The Association is located at 1201-1227 N Street and 1300-1308 lih Street 
in NW, Washington, D.C. The Condominium consists of 50 residential units and 17 
parking spaces. The Association's Board of Directors administers the operations of the 
Condominium. 

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

A) Method of Accounting - The financial statements are presented on the accrual 
method of accounting, in which revenues are recognized when earned and expenses when 
incurred, not necessarily when received or paid. 

'·~':~:,~:BY~femberAssessments - Association members·"a~~T~~pjest: to assessments to 
provide, futjds foi~" the,Ass?S~.(;l:!~o~'~ ... ()Per~:~~~-··~?cpens~~f fu~~~- SflPlt~l. __ ~cquisitions, and 
major xepairs and replace1nent~·-- ..... 5ss.ess+llen,ts-recef~abk;:at<the p·alance sheet date 
represent fe,es due _from

0
unit: owi;iers. · The.A.~~·9:fiatipn's policr is t9 assess late and interest 

charge~ ancJ to r~tain )-egah co~nsel an~ ... p11ce:. lie~s on i.the ::propyrtie~ of owners whose 
assessrpents~;.~"·~~µ11quent. Af! excees as~~~smeBts {lt y~ar-e14.d ar~~:;Jetained by the 
AssoCiation· for use in future··years. THe··As_s-ociation: utilizes· the ·allowance method of 
accounting for bad debt. 

C) Common Property - Real property and common areas acquired from the 
declarant and related improvements to such property are not recorded in the Association's 
financial statements because those properties are owned by the individual unit owners in 
common, and not by the Association. Common property includes, but is not limited to, 
the exterior structures and mechanical equipment. 

D) Estimates - The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles, requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions. Such estimates affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. They 
also affect the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

E) Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Association 
considers all highly liquid investments and interest-bearing deposits with an original 
maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

8 



DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 
(CONTINUED) 

NOTE 3 - REPLACEMENT RESERVES: 

The Association's governing documents require that funds be accumulated for 
future major repairs and replacements. Accumulated funds are generally not available for 
expenditures for normal operations. 

The Association had a replacement reserve study conducted by Property 
Diagnostics, Inc. during 2009 and updated during 2016. The table included in the 
Supplementary Information on Future Major Repairs and Replacements is based on the 
updated study. 

The 2009 study recommends a contribution to reserves of $34,000 for 2016. For 
2016, the Association budgeted to contribute $68,859 to reserves. 

PH:Iit;B , f-91Q, the Association entered into a ro9{~I~placement project. As 
expl~rilecl'#i~:NQte'c~z?\ the Association borrowed $300,0QO' '~cH:ftlµd tl1e cost of the roof 
replac9ment projeyt aiid le~~~~,~ sg~gial as~~~:~m~nt to :p~y b~p~ t~~J~~1:1: .The Association 
also inf ends to USe/epla:cellteiit I~§e~~es Jo 4e1p: lund the';rroJpct."'f he special assessments 
are betng yontribtited to r~playement re~e~~~- tor 2,016i and i! 201, 5, the Association 
contriHuted: $0 an cl $14;2 80 ;'respectively,, of special ~assessments tq replacement reserves. 

A Fun~S a;~'o~i~~ aceLJated in i~ep1~6~~1en~ iesJrvedbase~ o~ ~itimates of future 
needs for repair and replacement of common property components. Actual expenditures 
may vary from the estimated future expenditures and the variations may be material; 
therefore, amounts accumulated in the replacement reserves may or may not be adequate 
to meet all future needs for major repairs and replacements. If additional funds are 
needed, the Board of Directors, on behalf of the Association may increase regular 
assessments, pass special assessments, or delay major repairs and replacements until funds 
are available. 

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association had a balance of $179, 193 
and $112,834, respectively, in replacement reserves. These designated reserves were 
funded by cash and cash equivalents. 

NOTE 4 - INCOME TAXES: 

For income tax purposes, the Association may elect annually to file either as an 
exempt condominium or as an association taxable as a corporation. As an exempt 
condominium, the Association's net assessment income would be exempt from income 
tax, but its interest income would be taxed. Electing to file as a corporation, the 
Association is taxed on its net income from all sources (to the extent not capitalized or 
deferred) at normal corporate rates after corporate exemption, subject to the limitation 

9 



DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 
(CONTINUED) 

NOTE 4 - INCOME TAXES: (CONTINUED) 

that operating expenses are deductible only to the extent of income from members. For 
2016 and 2015, the income taxes were calculated using the corporate method. 

The Association's policy is to recognize any tax penalties and interest as an 
expense when incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the 
Association did not incur any penalties and interest related to income taxes. The 
Association's federal and state tax returns for the past three years remain subject to 
examination by the Internal Revenue Service and the District of Columbia. 

In accordance with accounting standards, a deferred tax asset has been recorded in 
the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future 
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying 
amop11t~\ 9-t ~¥S.,~~~g assets. and liabilities and their tax ba~~~.~ .. , . .Jhey are measured using 
enact~f 

0

ta~;::,rat~s' e¥pected to apply to taxable inCOffi:e" 'itt\t~~' y~~rs in which those 
tempo~ary fliffererces ,are e~p~c~~g .. to b~··· F~<2.~vered~· gr stj~le~> / ·T~~~ •. is, the interest 
expense de~uctiori.s cu~rently- e){-q~~d~ ta,xa(?fo fncoP1e;~').nd a,·~deferred:: fax asset will be 
shown)until_this exicess i.s applies{ to futui~eye.c:w~' taxable'income. 

; As 4rp~C~rp,b'i(~ 31) 20 i 6 and 4615(~~ A§§pciJtioJ, had l~ nJ!}cl,llembership loss 
carryforwar&,of$27,835, relateCtto interest expense onthe·loan payable:" As of December 
31, 2016 and 2015, the Association had a deferred tax asset of $6,482, which represents 
$3,768 for federal and $2,714 for state income taxes. A valuation allowance has been 
established to adjust for the portion of the loss carryforward that may expire before it can 
be utilized. The deferred tax asset, net of the valuation allowance, was as follows: 

Deferred Tax Asset 
Less: Valuation Allowance 
Deferred Tax Asset- Net 

2016 

$ 6,482 
(6,482) 

$ 

2015 

$ 6,482 
(6,482) 

$ 

The remaining non-membership loss carryforward and expiration dates are as 
follows: 

Expiration 
Date 

2030 
2031 
Total 

Loss 
Carryforward 

$ 12,528 
15,307 

$ 27.835 

DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

(CONTINUED) 

NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 

As of December 31, 2016, the Association maintained its funds in the following 
manner: 

Type Cash and Cash 
Institution Account Equivalents 

SunTrust Bank Checking $ 100,151 
SunTrust Bank Money Market 92~593 

Total $ 192~744 

NOTE 6 - ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE - NET: 

!,h~: !?-~s?~iation . utilizes the allowance method ?t.:.~_c~ounting for bad debt. 
Indivld_uafieeeiyabk~ are written off as a loss when a de~eimin_ation)s, made that they are 
non-collectible. \Una~.r t~e ~llo.~(;lnce ~.~tpp~, coll~~tiori ~±~9rts .!11.~~ continue and 
recovefies ()f amdunts ·pre,[icni~Jy_ writtyn- gff ,are .. recogniz~&· as .. :inc9me in the year of 
collection. : , - ·· · 0 

· • 

~ :'. \~· .:: 

,} Asslssil':~~t;'~ecei1lble ( 
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Assessments 
Assessments Receivable - Net 

NOTE 7 - LOAN PAY ABLE: 

2016{ 

/',~·$7,441·····- -·~;,, 

(7,179) 
$ 262 

2015 

$ 7,168 
(6,865) 

$ 303 

In 2010, the Association obtained a loan from SunTrust Bank of $300,000 to 
provide funding for the 2010 roof replacement project. The loan was for a term of 5 years 
at 6.5% interest. The loan called for monthly payments of $5,884 and was collateralized 
by future assessments. In addition, SunTrust Bank has a security interest in and a lien 
upon all deposits maintained with SunTrust Bank. Loan acquisition costs were being 
amortized over the life of the loan. As of December 31, 2015, the Association has satisfied 
its loan obligation to SunTrust Bank. 
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DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 
(CONTINUED) 

NOTE 8 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENT: 

During 2010, the Association approved a five year special assessment in the amount 
of $287 ,500 to fund the roof project. The special assessment was collected in monthly 
payments from May 2010 through April 2015. The special assessment was originally due in 
60 monthly installments of $90.08 for a 1.88% percentage interest, $122.19 for a 2.55% 
percentage interest and $120.75 for a 2.52% percentage interest. However, the 
Association assessed the unit owners based on the budgeted special assessments for the 
year times their respective percentage interests, resulting in actual charges of only 
$273,276. 

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 

!l'l: . .Pr~p!~~g these financial statements, the Associ~!~9ft~.as evaluated events and 
trans'C[ctfons'.i;::fOr::.pot~ntial recognition or disclosure thr~u~~··· {~~te tq be inserted upon 
finaliz~tion ]~ the d~te thy financial availa~!e to he issued.': 

12 



DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON FUTURE MAJOR 

REP AIRS AND REPLACEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 

(UNAUDITED) 

The Association had a replacement reserve study conducted by Property Diagnostics, Inc. 
during 2016 to estimate the remaining useful lives and the replacement costs of the components of 
common property. Replacement costs were based on the estimated costs to repair or replace the 
common property components at the date of the study. The estimated replacement costs presented 
below do not take into account the effects of inflation between the date of the study and the date the 
components will require repair or replacement. 

The following has been extracted from the Association's replacement reserve study and 
presents significant information about the components of common property. 

Component 
,.. ::· :-

Architecttlral Grounds 
Building ]£nvetope .. . .· 
Building0Interiox· .,···. ······ ·' 
Mechanical/Plumbing/Electrical 

2016 
Estimated 
Remaining 

Useful 
Life 

4-32 

13 

2016 
·•''; ;"·" ~stirµated 

· RepJac~ment 
·Cost·· 

·.,.~~_;.;'_'_ 

$ 24~,596 
570,356 

\ 3J,8.8o 
447~720 
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June 27, 2017 

Board of Directors 
Downtown I and II Condominium 

Dear Board M~R~I;~;~:F~;:','':~::<.,"' 

In planning and ~~rforlrung dµr aJ!lit'qtth~ ;Qli~ci~l sf;tt;;pents otpo~to.v? I dud.II Condominium 
as of December ~1, 2Q16 anq' for t,he Y,ear then endecl,,l~,~,ccordance wi~h auqiting standards generally 
accepted in the United Statespf ~erica, we consid~redJh~ As~ociatton's, interpal 9ontrol over financial 
reporting (inteTI1~ co11tr~l),, ·~~"'a basi~,i) for :i .. desi~g a'li~~ting .- grocydun~s th8;t ar,7 .• ~ppropriate in the 
circumstances for· the .PlirPnse of expressmg· our opinion ·on the fmandal statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control. 

However, during our audit, we became aware of matters that are opportunities for strengthening 
internal controls and improving operating efficiency. This letter summarizes our comments and 
suggestions regarding those matters. 

Association Specific Comments 

Financial Analysis 

As of December 31, 2016, the Association had a surplus of $7,477 in excess operating funds 
(unappropriated members' equity). This represents approximately 4% of annual assessments. We 
recommend the Association maintain excess operating funds at a level of 10% to 20% of annual 
assessments. This procedure should ensure that potential operating deficits will not consume funds 
designated for replacement reserves. 

Associations budget their income evenly over a twelve-month period. When assessments become 
delinquent, cash flow problems develop and the Association may have problems paying its monthly 
expenses. As of December 31, 2016, the Association's assessments receivable balance of $7,441 (before 
deducting the allowance for doubtful assessments of $7,179) was equal to 4% of annual assessments. 

phone 703 3919003 fax703 3919004 www.GGroupCPAs.com 



An assessments receivable balance of 3 % or more of annual assessments suggests the Association may 
have future cash flow problems. We recommend the Association continue to aggressively pursue all 
delinquent accounts. 

As of December 31, 2016, the Association had designated $179, 193 for replacement reserves. These 
replacement reserves were ftmded by cash and cash equivalents. 

Update Reserve Study 

We commend the Association in obtaining a new reserve study during 2016. We recommend the 
Association use this study as the basis for determining annual contributions to reserves. 

Contracts Need to be Updated 

The Association's current management and cleaning contracts are outdated. We recommend the 
Association obtain new contracts with the vendors that detail the terms of service, monthly fee, and 
annual price increases. 

Board of Directors Minutes 

It is our under~ta.t1c1iJ:i~': p~se~ on discussions with management that the ~ssociation does not always 
meet on a regulfil\~asi£:,~;1r,:isi111;~ortant for the Association to meet on>a;rf gular b~~is and record formal 
minutes for the Associ~tion's,~:recofds. Minutes ?.f board ~~~tings are( importan:Jecprds of the decisions 
concerning areas f: of tP.e Asspciatipn's<:bus~ess' c;mq; f~...r18.f1;cial; aff?-[s. '\YP-y~ever:,§'.: meeting is held, 
minutes should by recorded. yv e r~con:llne~d the,,A~,~ociatipn begin f:o re;cord i,neetings and include the 
following informqtion Within the minutes: ' . . . 

1) 
2) 
3) 
4) 
5) 
6) 

. :::.. } :~; :.: :': _.,:_-.:··· .~-:-~ :~ ::: -'.~ :''. ~~ :·: 

c~pr0Ja1;0£''1ar~peri;1tbg.Jqdget cbQ~~'aske~§~el\t~l l1l:\91rnseJ~.c~iµ'iibution) 
Approval of monthly contractual services (vendors and amounts) 
Approval of major non-reserve expenditures (vendors and amounts) 
Approval of expenditures out of reserves (vendors and amounts) 
Transfer offimds from one bank to another (dates and amounts) 
Write-off of any assessments receivable (units and amounts) 

These and other business and financial decisions should be included in the minutes in order to have 
documentation of board actions and provide guidance to management. 

Special Assessment Charges 

During 2010, the Association approved a five-year special assessment to help pay back the roof fund 
loan. The special assessment began May 1, 2010 and ended April 2015. Unit owners were given the 
option to pay the special assessment in full or spread it out over the five years. The original special 
assessment letter states an annual special assessment charge of $57,500 each year with the first and 
last years prorated. The special assessment was originally due in 60 monthly installments of $90.08 for a 
1.88% percentage interest, $122.19 for a 2.55% percentage interest and $120.75 for a 2.52% percentage 
interest. However, the Association assessed the unit owners based on the budgeted special assessments 
for the year times their respective percentage interests, resulting in actual charges of only $273,276. 

The unit owners that prepaid in full during the five year period were assessed at the monthly rate for 
that year, and thus were not charged in line with unit owners that did not prepay. We proposed an 
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adjustment to record the differences charged to owners that prepaid as prepaid special asssessments. 
These amounts should be returned to the unit owners so that all owners with the same percentage 
interest are assessed the same special assessment. 

Income Taxes 

For 2016, we recommend the Association file using the exempt method. 

Industry Standard Comments 

Insurance 

We recommend the Association meet with its insurance agent at least annually to discuss insurance 
coverage. The Association should make sure the insurance policies provide the necessary and 
appropriate protection. In addition to all of the standard coverage that is usually recommended, the 
Association should maintain appropriate crime and directors & officers (D&O) coverage. At a 
minimum, the Association should maintain crime coverage that equals or exceeds the total of its 
funds or as required by state law. It should be structured to include a defalcation or misappropriation 
committed by a Board member, an employee of the Association, or employees of the management 
company, including principals. 

Investment PoHcv c c'· 

The Association Jshotild ha-Ve a .bonsyrvatiye · inve9trv.-entpq1,icYi.:~hich·: i~:·;stru~~ed around three 
elements, in order of i~portaµce 1 p safety ,','2) 1iquiqi,~Y)fil1cl 3) yieldi, Bt[caus1 safety and liquidity are 
of prime importapce t? any ~ssoctation, w~ recomm~n~:hwestmen~;s be_ limi1:ed to instruments of the 
federal governm~nt, 'Yhic~;.are.!Jacke1 by;. its full .. faitli. ~µd credit, t and' mon~y n,mrket accounts and 
certificates of d.~po~it~tinsured institµtiqg§}" · . ' · · · · 

Periodically, the Association should monitor its accounts for FDIC and SIPC coverage. The FDIC 
insurance limit is $250,000 per financial institution. Cash and securities held at a SIPC member 
brokerage firm are insured by the SIPC for up to $500,000, which includes $250,000 limit for cash. The 
Association should also periodically check the ratings for all financial institutions used by the 
Association. 

We shall be pleased to discuss our comments and recommendations in greater detail and we are 
always available to give advice on any financial matter. Please do not hesitate to contact us if there 
are any questions regarding proper accounting procedures or the implementation of our suggested 
changes. 

Very truly yours, 

GOLDKLANG GROUP CPAs, P.C. 
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Principals 
Howard A. Goldklang, CPA, MBA 
Donald E. Harris, CPA 
Anne M. Sheehan, CPA 
S. Gail Moore, CPA 

1801 Robert Fulton Drive, Suite 200 

Reston, VA 20191 

Associate Principals 
Jeremy W. Powell, CPA 
Renee L. Watson, CPA 

Managers 
Allison A. Day, CPA 

MatthewT. Stiefvater, CPA 
Sheila M. Lewis, CPA 

Communication with Those Charged with Governance under AU-C §260 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and the board of 
directors and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

June 27, 2017 

Board of Directors 
Downtown I and II Condominium 

Dear Board Me_µlb.~!S: 
-·:::..··-.-· ~_·, 

We have audited, the }in~dt~r'?q:ements of pownto~ J~nd H c;bnd.bili:1n.i)Ui:i ~as of December 31, 
2016 and for the year !then ei}ded ···a,.nd pavyj~~~~~d 9ur~iep1oit thereon. Pfofossion:al ~standards require 
that we provide you ~ith inform~itior1 ab()ut our i~e~~o11~ibilities under generally accepted auditing 
standards, as well as 9ertairvinf~.nnat~on 7elated t~ .. th~ pJann~d scppe and t~mi~g of our audit. We 
have communicated sµ~~Jnf'o,_pnatio~i~in qur engapem~~~'.lett~~.'. Profe~sion~~1 st~ngards also require 
that we communi.cateto~you·the followinglnformationrei'1tedt6 our.audit. ' . -' 

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to 
express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your 
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of 
your responsibilities. 

Our responsibility for the supplementary information required by the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board, as described by professional standards, is to apply certain limited procedures to the 
information about management's methods of preparing the information; however, we will not express 
an opinion or any assurance on the information. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to 
be examined and the areas to be tested. 
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Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the Association and its environment, including 
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and 
to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result 
from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of 
laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the Association or to acts by management or 
employees acting on behalf of the Association. We will generally communicate our significant 
findings at the conclusion of the audit. However, some matters could be communicated sooner, 
particularly if significant difficulties are encountered during the audit where assistance is needed to 
overcome the difficulties or if the difficulties may lead to a modified opinion. We will also 
communicate any internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under 
professional standards. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by the Association are described in Note 2 to the financial 
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not 
changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the Association during the year 
for which ther~ i~ .'1 la,f~ .of,cillthoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have 
been recognizecF-iirtne·.fini;l11ciaJ statements in the proper period. · · 

.:.: .:o.· -:1\, ·:·, •• _ 

Accounting esti~ates ~re anintegt.al p~rrto[t~e·fi,nCVlctatstat({~e~t$;Prepe:r~q;by 1n'.l~agement and are 
based on manag~menf' s knoyvledge and experienq~ ~~?~t past and ClL,~ent ;events and assumptions 
about future evynts. :. Certaifl a9cooo,ting estimat,~s:·.flT9 p4rticu~arly~ sen~itivy because of their 
significance to tlJ.e fit}anci~i ~t~teme~~s apd becaµse §~ .. the P?ssi?ility that futrr~. events affecting 
them may differ<signi:fic~btly from th:q~~ .·¢:xpected ... J. ,here w .. · ~re µc) ,. significant ac.·.·.·.96unting estimates 

,..::·•·' ··-··.· .. · ... , ... ; .. : .. -.-· ""-····:-\ 

for the year under audit. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. There were no significant disclosures to the financial statements for the 
year under audit. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing 
our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
The adjusting journal entries have been provided to the Association and will be posted to the 
Association's accounts, if appropriate. The journal entries are material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements. 
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Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Association's financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 

Other Audit Findi,ngs ~;·;;~u~;,,~ · 

We generally discuss;; a vari~ty of m~tter~; includ~11~)~~~ application hf adpou*tiD.g principles and 
auditing standarqs, "':ith maJ1ag~ment each year dior tp retenti°:n ap the~ As~ociation's auditors. 
However, these ~iscu~sion§io~9urred .iin t\1e norm§tl co~!~e of our :professioµal refa.tionship and our 
responses werenot.a.con;dition'to Ourd·~tention. . . . .' . , -~-

Required Supplementary Information 

With respect to the supplementary information required by the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board, we applied certain limited procedures to the information, including inquiring of management 
about their methods of preparing the information; comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements; and obtaining certain 
representations from management, including about whether the required supplementary information 
is measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines. 

Very truly yours, 

GOLDKLANG GROUP CPAs, P.C. 
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Principals 
Howard A. Goldklang, CPA, MBA 
Donald E. Harris, CPA 
Anne M. Sheehan, CPA 
S. Gail Moore, CPA 

1801 Robert Fulton Drive, Suite 200 

Reston, VA 20191 

Associate Principals 
JeremyW. Powell, CPA 
Renee L. Watson, CPA 

Managers 
Allison A. Day, CPA 

MatthewT. Stiefvater, CPA 
Sheila M. Lewis, CPA 

Communication of Significant Deficiencies and/or Material Weaknesses under A U-C §265 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and the board of 
directors and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

June 27, 2017 

Board of Directors 
Downtown I and II Condominium 

In planning and µerformingqur 'avdi\()fth_e ~n~ncial~!~~~W:ents orDoW,i;~o~,(¥:d.n Condominium 
as of December 3J, 2q16 anclfor t~e Yyar t~en,~,11d~d, · i!l a9~cm:lance. witU:·a.uaiting{sfandards generally 
accepted in the Vnit~d States of Americ:a, we' con~ide,:~d the As.soc}atiorf s ii,1temal control over 
financial reporting (internalpon~7ol) a~ a 9asis for.<:J.esi.gning audit proc:edur~s thp.t are appropriate in 
the circumstanc~$ for th_~,P1J:Pose of,expre~sing opr opi~~on ()~ thy fir\anciaj_ state~ents, but not for 
the purpose of ·expressing· an opinioiYon·,the effectiveness·• of ·the ... ,.Association',s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, 
including the possibility of management override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected by such controls. However, as discussed below, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses or other deficiencies that 
we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the Association's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the following deficiencies in the 
Association's internal control to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies: 
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Cash Basis of Accounting Used 

The Association's accounting records are maintained on a cash basis of accounting throughout the 
year. We have proposed several material adjustments to present the financial statements on the 
accrual basis of accounting. The absence of controls over preparing the financial statements on the 
accrual basis of accounting, which is in accordance with U.S. GAAP, is considered a material 
weakness because there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial 
statements could occur and not be prevented, or detected and corrected, by the Association's internal 
control. 

Very truly yours, 

GOLDKLANG GROUP CPAs, P.C. 
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Representation Letter 
This letter needs to be signed by the Board President or Treasurer and management representative, if applicable, and 
returned to our office within 60 days. 

GOLDKLANG GROUP CPAs, P.C. 
1801 Robert Fulton Drive, Suite 200 
Reston, Virginia 20191 

Dear Auditors: 

Downtown I and II Condominium 

The representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the financial statements of Downtown I and II 
Condominium which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of 
income, members' equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material 
respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are considered 
material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in light of 
surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information 
would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily 
small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you during your audits: 

Financial Statements 

• We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter, including our 
responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements. In regard to the non­
attest services outlined in our engagement letter to be performed by you, we have -

o Assumed all management responsibilities. 
o Designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the services. 
o Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed. 
o Accepted responsibility for the results of the services. 

• The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP. 

• We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

• We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to 
prevent and detect fraud. 

• Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 
are reasonable. 

• Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP. 

• All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires 
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 



• We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have recommended, and they have been 
posted to the Association's accounts, if appropriate. 

• We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims or 
assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with 
U.S. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning pending litigation, claims, or assessments. 

• Material concentrations have been properly disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

• Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Association is contingently liable, have been 
properly recorded or disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

• Transfers or designations of equity balance or inter-equity borrowings have been properly authorized and 
approved and have been properly recorded or disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

• Uncollectible inter-equity loans have been properly accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP. 

Information Provided 

• We have provided you with: 
o Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters. 
o Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 
o Unrestricted access to persons within the Association from whom you determined it necessary to 

obtain audit evidence. 

• Minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors were not provided. No actions were taken at the meetings 
that would require disclosure in, or adjustments to, the financial statements. 

• We have provided you with communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, 
or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices, if any. 

• All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements. 

• We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

• We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the Association and involves: 
o Management, 
o Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 
o Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

• We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Association's financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others. 

• We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and 
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 
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• We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims or 
assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with 
U.S. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning pending litigation, claims, or assessments. 

• We have disclosed to you the identity of the Association's related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

• Except as made known to you and disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, the Association has 
satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets nor has any 
asset been pledged as collateral. If applicable, we have reviewed our long lived assets for impairment. 

• We acknowledge our responsibilities for presenting the required supplementary information (RSI) in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP. The RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines, and the 
methods of measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have 
disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and 
presentation of the RSI. The Association had a study conducted in 2016. Amounts accumulated in the 
replacement reserves may or may not be adequate to meet all future needs for major repairs and 
replacements. If additional funds are needed, the Board of Directors, on behalf of the Association may 
increase regular assessments, pass special assessments, or delay major repairs and replacements until 
funds are available. 

• We understand that the Association is responsible for the choice of income tax filing method and the 
consequences thereof. The Association's allocation of expenses against exempt and nonexempt function 
income conforms to IRS rules, which require that the allocation be made "on a reasonable basis." We have 
adequately documented such allocation. 

• Assessments receivable recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for 
assessments or other charges arising on or before the balance sheet date and have been reduced to their 
estimated realizable value. 

• We have reviewed with our insurance agent the adequacy of our insurance coverage, including compliance 
with any statutory or documentary requirements. 

• We have disclosed to you all material events, if any, that would require adjustments to, or disclosure in, the 
financial statements. In addition, we represent that no other material events have occurred since you 
completed your audit fieldwork on May 16, 2017 and through the date of this letter. Examples of material 
events include, but are not limited to, contracts for replacement reserve expenditures, losses due to a fire, 
changes in ongoing litigation or new litigation and approval of special assessments. Material events that have 
occurred are: 

Downtown I and II Condominium 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 

Management Representative: 

Signature 

President/Treasurer: 

Signature 

Printed Name Date 

Printed Name Date 
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3941-A16 DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM Prepared by __ 

06/26/2017 Adjusted Trial Balance Reviewed by __ 

08:46 AM for the period ended December 31, 2016 Page 1 

Prior Period Unadjusted Adjusted 

(Adjusted) Balance Adjustments Balance Workp~ 

Account# I Description 12/31/2015 Dr (Cr) Ref# Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Refere 

1001 Checking - Operating 38,655.39 100, 150.87 100, 150.87 B-1 

1141 Money Fund - Suntrust 92,546.65 92,592.95 92,592.95 B-2 

1204 Assessments Receivable 7, 167.56 AJE-1 7,167.56 7.441.30 E-1 

AJE-2 (7,167.56) 

AJE-3 7.441.30 

1205 Special Assessments AR 52.72 AJE-1 52.72 

AJE-2 (52.72) 

1206 Allowance for DIA (6,865.20) AJE-1 (6,865.20) (7, 178.94) F-1 

AJE-8 (313.74) 

1310 Prepaid Insurance 5,572.20 AJE-1 5,572.20 1,058.00 G-1 

AJE-7 (4,514.20) 

2002 Accounts Payable (5,329.80) AJE-1 (5,329.80) (3,383.59) N-1 

AJE-4 5,329.80 

AJE-5 (3,383.59) 

2104 Prepaid Assessments (2,795.53) AJE-1 (2.795.53) (2,353.73) E-1 

AJE-2 2.795.53 

AJE-3 (2,353.73) 

2105 Prepaid Special Assessments - Prior Owners (1,655.68) AJE-1 (1,655.68) (1,655.68)S-1 

3311 Replacement Reserve (112,834.36) (176,265.47) AJE-1 (0.36) (179, 193.36) R-1 

AJE-4 (2,927.53) 

3339 Allowance for non-payment (1,500.00) AJE-1 1,500.00 

3452 Retained Earnings (31,523.50) (14,978.35) AJE-1 464.40 (14,513.95)*** 

(Profit) Loss 17,009.55 7,036.13 7,036.13 



3941-A16 DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM Prepared by __ 

06/26/2017 Adjusted Trial Balance Reviewed by __ 

08:46 AM for the period ended December 31, 2016 Page 2 

Prior Period Unadjusted Adjusted 

(Adjusted) Balance Adjustments Balance Workp~ 

Account# I Description 12/31/2015 Dr (Cr) Ref# Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Ref ere 

4104 Condo Fees (109, 191.00) (109.419.32) AJE-2 (2,713.34) (109,191.00)Y-1 

AJE-3 2,353.73 

AJE-3 587.93 

4114 Reserve Assessments (59,005.00) (70,645.03) AJE-2 217.83 (73,285.00)Y-1 

AJE-3 (944.38) 

AJE-3 (1,913.42) 

4121 Special Reserve (14,279.52) (1,966.14) AJE-2 52.72 

AJE-3 1,913.42 

4128 Parking Fees (4.493.01) (4.478.11) AJE-2 2.34 (4.475.77)Y-1 

4140 Late Charges AJE-2 139.00 

AJE-3 (139.00) 

4141 Bad Debt Recovery (1,124.35) 

4142 Legal Income (57.00) AJE-2 6.726.20 (768.43) 

AJE-3 (6,945.85) 

AJE-6 (548.78) 

4302 Interest Income (41.03) (46.30) (46.30)B-2 

5002 Management Fees 21,722.04 22,808.04 22,808.04 X-1 

5004 Legal 2,227.00 3,356.82 AJE-5 57.00 3,962.60 X-1 

AJE-6 548.78 

5006 Audit/Tax 2,950.00 3.450.00 AJE-4 (100.00) 3, 100.00 X-1 

AJE-6 (250.00) 

5012 Postage, Printing 215.36 250.60 250.60 

5038 Bank Charges 99.14 286.50 286.50 

5040 Bad Debt Expense AJE-8 313.74 313.74 F-1 

5098 Miscellaneous Expense 160.00 80.00 80.00 

5102 Electricity 1,543.13 1.708.60 AJE-4 (236.00) 1,653.21 

AJE-5 180.61 

5108 Water & sewer 22,223.35 27,302.55 AJE-4 (589.00) 28.418.38 X-1 

AJE-5 1,704.83 

5202 Trash Removal 8.412.24 7,957.24 AJE-4 (634.77) 7,957.24 X-1 

AJE-5 634.77 

5204 Grounds Landscape Contract 5,781.90 6,091.20 6,091.20 X-1 

5206 Exterminating 1.713.12 3,278.24 3,278.24 

5230 Cleaning 7,077.84 7,827.84 7,827.84 X-1 



3941-A16 DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM Prepared by __ 

06/26/2017 Adjusted Trial Balance Reviewed by __ 

08:46 AM for the period ended December 31, 2016 Page 3 

Prior Period Unadjusted Adjusted 

(Adjusted) Balance Adjustments Balance Workpc 

Account# I Description 12/31/2015 Dr (Cr) Ref# Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Refere 

5263 Fire Equipment 1,649.33 1,494.20 1,494.20 

5302 Electrical Repairs 1,654.52 501.65 AJE-5 639.64 1,141.29 

5306 Plumbing R&M 4,515.65 1,737.50 AJE-4 (842.50) 993.00 

AJE-5 98.00 

5321 Roof Repairs 545.00 545.00 

5326 Grounds Landscape R&M 650.00 258.17 258.17 

5332 Snow Removal 10,204.88 3,970.79 AJE-5 68.74 4,039.53 

5342 General Repairs 17,480.94 7,648.50 7,648.50 X-1 

5346 Painting & Plastering 985.00 985.00 

5372 Maintenance Supplies 142.87 

5377 Light Bulbs 235.66 

5386 Keys/Locks & Services 1,257.55 626.94 626.94 

5393 Dryer Vent Cleaning 2,617.31 2,617.31 

5910 Insurance Master Policy 20,338.90 14,802.90 AJE-7 4,514.20 19,317.10 G-1 

5930 Income Tax 250.00 AJE-6 250.00 250.00 T-1 

6309 Reserve - Special Assessment 14,280.00 

6311 Transfer from Reserve 58,415.04 68,859.00 68,859.00 R-1 

6339 Allowance for non-payment 1,500.00 AJE-1 (1,500.00) 

9999 Year Suspense (3,389.69) AJE-1 3,389.69 

(Profit) Loss 17,009.55 7,036.13 7,036.13 



3941-A16 

06/26/2017 

08:46 AM 

Account# 

12/31/2016 

1204 

1205 

1206 

1310 

2002 

2104 

2105 

3339 

6339 

3452 

3311 

9999 

DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 

Adjusting Journal Entries 

for the period ended December 31, 2016 

Account Name I Description 

Assessments Receivable 

Special Assessments AR 

Allowance for D/A 

Prepaid Insurance 

Accounts Payable 

Prepaid Assessments 

AJE 

Prepaid Special Assessments - Prior Owners 

Allowance for non-payment 

Allowance for non-payment 

Retained Earnings 

Replacement Reserve 

Year Suspense 

TO RECORD PRIOR YEAR'S ADJUSTING ENTRIES AND TO TIE EQUITY 

12/31/2016 AJE 2 

2104 Prepaid Assessments 

4104 Condo Fees 

1205 Special Assessments AR 

1204 Assessments Receivable 

4128 Parking Fees 

4142 Legal Income 

4140 Late Charges 

4114 Reserve Assessments 

4121 Special Reserve 

TO REVERSE PRIOR YEAR'S ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAID ASSESSMENTS 

12/31/2016 AJE 3 

4104 Condo Fees 

2104 Prepaid Assessments 

1204 Assessments Receivable 

4104 Condo Fees 

4114 Reserve Assessments 

4142 Legal Income 

4140 Late Charges 

4121 Special Reserve 

4114 Reserve Assessments 

TO RECORD CURRENT YEAR'S ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAID ASSESSMENTS 

12/31/2016 

2002 

3311 

5006 

Accounts Payable 

Replacement Reserve 

Audit/Tax 

AJE 4 

Debits 

7,167.56 

52.72 

5,572.20 

1,500.00 

464.40 

3,389.69 

2,795.53 

2.34 

6.726.20 

139.00 

217.83 

52.72 

2,353.73 

7.441.30 

587.93 

1,913.42 

5,329.80 

Credits 

6,865.20 

5,329.80 

2.795.53 

1,655.68 

1,500.00 

0.36 

2.713.34 

52.72 

7, 167.56 

2,353.73 

944.38 

6,945.85 

139.00 

1,913.42 

2,927.53 

100.00 

Page 



3941-A16 DOWNTOWN I AND II CONDOMINIUM 

06/26/2017 Adjusting Journal Entries 
08:46 AM for the period ended December 31, 2016 Page 2 

Account# Account Name I Description Debits Credits 

5102 Electricity 236.00 

5108 Water & sewer 589.00 

5306 Plumbing R&M 842.50 

5202 Trash Removal 634.77 

TO REVERSE PRIOR YEAR'S ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

12/31/2016 AJE 5 

2002 Accounts Payable 3,383.59 

5004 Legal 57.00 

5102 Electricity 180.61 

5108 Water & sewer 1,704.83 

5202 Trash Removal 634.77 

5302 Electrical Repairs 639.64 

5306 Plumbing R&M 98.00 

5332 Snow Removal 68.74 

TO RECORD CURRENT YEAR'S ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

12/31/2016 AJE 6 

5004 Legal 548.78 

4142 Legal Income 548.78 

5930 Income Tax 250.00 

5006 Audit/Tax 250.00 

TO RECLASSIFY INTO THE CORRECT GL ACCOUNTS 

12/31/2016 AJE 7 

5910 Insurance Master Policy 4,514.20 

1310 Prepaid Insurance 4,514.20 

TO ADJUST PREPAID INSURANCE 

12/31/2016 AJE 8 

5040 Bad Debt Expense 313.74 

1206 Allowance for D/A 313.74 

TO ADJUST THE ALLOWNCE FOR DOUBTFUL ASSESSMENT 

Totals 54,716.68 54,716.68 



DECLARATION 
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INSURANCE 

INFORMATION



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $

DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRO-
POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

04/07/2017

(301) 587-4200 (866) 214-5944

14141

The Downtown I & II, A Condominium
c/o Tilton Bernstein Management, Inc.
1827 14th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20009

A 1,000,000

9162857 05/15/2017 05/15/2018 100,000
5,000

1,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000

1,000,000A
9162857 05/15/2017 05/15/2018

2,000,000A
7974277 05/15/2017 05/15/2018 2,000,000

0

A Fidelity Bond 9162857 05/15/2017 Deductible: $250 150,000
A Blanket Building 9162857 05/15/2017 05/15/2018 Deductible: $1,000 9,382,000

Washington, DC 20005

The fidelity bond coverage includes the property management company, Tilton Bernstein Management, Inc.

Total Number of Units: 52

Additional Property Coverages:
SEE ATTACHED ACORD 101

FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
Please send requests to:
Email: condocerts@aimcommercial.com
Fax: 877 733-1203

DOWNI&I-01 JER3

Associated Insurance Management, Inc.
1300 Spring Street
Suite 300
Silver Spring, MD 20910

Please Send 

edocs@aimcommercial.com

Harford Mutual Insurance Co.

05/15/2018

X
X

X

X X

X

X

X



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

Page           ofADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE
AGENCY NAMED INSURED

POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

EFFECTIVE DATE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: FORM TITLE:

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

DOWNI&I-01 JER3
0

1 1

The Downtown I & II, A Condominium
c/o Tilton Bernstein Management, Inc.
1827 14th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20009

Associated Insurance Management, Inc.

SEE PAGE 1

SEE PAGE 1 SEE P 1 SEE PAGE 1

ACORD 25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

Description of Operations/Locations/Vehicles:
Company: Harford Mutual Insurance Company
Policy Number: 9162857
Effective: 5/15/2017 to 5/15/2018
Building Ordinance or Law:
  Undamaged Portion of Building: Included in Building Limit
  Demolition: $100,000 Limit Each Building
  Increased Cost of Construction: $250,000 Limit Each Building
Equipment Breakdown: 
  Limit: Included
  Deductible: $1,000

Directors & Officers Liability:
Company: Travelers Casualty & Surety Company of America
Policy Number: 105927990
Effective: 5/15/2017 to 5/15/2018
$1,000,000 Limit, $2,500 Retention

The master policy provides coverage for improvements within the units as originally conveyed by the developer (original 
specifications). Improvements subsequently installed by unit owners at their own expense are not covered. 100% replacement cost 
subject to the scheduled limit.  Subject to terms and conditions of the policy. Severability of interest applies.



RESERVE 
REPORT 



CONDOMINIUM

EXECUTIVE STATEMENT

This Repair and Replacement Reserve Schedule Report has been developed for the Property,
Board of Directors, for the specific purpose of reviewing the major components and developing
a Repair and Replacement Reserve Schedule based on our research and observation of the
property.  Our report contains two different methods of reserve analysis.  The first section
presents the Component Method and the second section presents the Cash Flow Method.

The analysis for both methods involved visits to the property with a walk-through of all
accessible common areas of the site.  Specific areas included the grounds, walkways, roofing,
building exterior, mechanical, plumbing and electrical equipment, and interior common spaces.

The examination was made following generally accepted visual inspection standards and did
not include testing of any equipment or physical conditions, unless specific reference is made to
such testing.  Unless otherwise stated, we have reported only on those items that we were able
to observe visually.  The inspection did not include removing portions of construction in order to
expose concealed conditions.  The report is intended to fairly present our professional opinion of
the condition of the facility and the component parts to which reference is made in the report, as
of the date of this inspection.  The report is based upon the visual observations and information
provided to us of the age, materials, equipment, and construction techniques that were used
subject to the qualifications expressed in this report. 

Based on the findings in each of the specific areas reviewed, professional judgment was used in
forecasting the remaining life expectancy of the systems and components scheduled in the body
of this report.  The estimated cost of each component has been identified.  The same basis and
judgment was used in describing any existing conditions based on estimated cost of all
necessary or recommended repairs.  This report, therefore, does not constitute or represent a
warranty of the property’s condition and should not be viewed as such.  Rather, the report
reflects our professional opinion based on the methodology specified above.

PROPERTY DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

_____________________
William D. Grimes
President
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DOWNTOWN I & II

EXECUTIVE STATEMENT

This Repair and Replacement Reserve Schedule Report has been developed for
Downtown I & II, Board of Directors, for the specific purpose of reviewing the major
components and developing a Repair and Replacement Reserve Schedule based on
our research and observation of the property.  Our report contains two different methods
of reserve analysis.  The first section presents the Component Method and the second
section presents the Cash Flow Method.

The difference between the component method and cash flow method, the component
method list all features of the property that will require repair or replacement over the
normal useful life.  The component annual contribution is based on the property’s
requirement to fund repairs or replacements at the time of the site analysis.  This may
result in short term higher contributions in an effort to catch up short falls in the reserve
account.  The component method has no means of readjusting the annual contribution
after a component is repaired or replaced.  For example, a roof requiring to be replaced
within the next ten years will require an annual contribution of 10% for each year.  After
replaced a normal useful life of a roof system is 20 years, which results in an annual
contribution of 5%.  The cash flow method takes into account the activities on the
property and the expenditures expected over the next 30 years. Thereby, allowing an
adjustment to the annual contribution rather than over funding the reserve account.

The analysis for both methods involved visits to the property with a walk-through of all
accessible common areas of the site.  Specific areas included the grounds, walkways,
roofing, building exterior, mechanical, plumbing and electrical equipment, and interior
common spaces.

The examination was made following generally accepted visual inspection standards
and did not include testing of any equipment or physical conditions, unless specific
reference is made to such testing.  Unless otherwise stated, we have reported only on
those items that we were able to observe visually.  The inspection did not include
removing portions of construction in order to expose concealed conditions.  The report
is intended to fairly present our professional opinion of the condition of the facility and
the component parts to which reference is made in the report, as of the date of this
inspection.  The report is based upon the visual observations and information provided
to us of the age, materials, equipment, and construction techniques that were used
subject to the qualifications expressed in this report.



Based on the findings in each of the specific areas reviewed, professional judgment was
used in forecasting the remaining life expectancy of the systems and components
scheduled in the body of this report.  The estimated cost of each component has been
identified.  The same basis and judgment was used in describing any existing conditions
based on estimated cost of all necessary or recommended repairs.  This report,
therefore, does not constitute or represent a warranty of the property’s condition and
should not be viewed as such.  Rather, the report reflects our professional opinion
based on the methodology specified above.

PROPERTY DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

_____________________
William D. Grimes
President



Understanding your reserve report 

What is a reserve report? 

A reserve report is a financial plan for commonly owned properties. Reserve reports are 

not to be treated as a budget it is a financial plan.   

What does a reserve report include? 

A reserve report identifies all common and limited common property owned by a 

community that will require replacement or refurbishment over the life of the property. 

The report quantifies all common property, identifies typical life spans of each 

component, projects remaining life spans of common components, estimates the cost to 

replace or refurbish each common component, evaluates current fund status of the 

property’s reserve fund, and recommends annual contribution to meet property needs.  

Why does a property need a reserve report? 

• Community properties in some municipalities are required to have a reserve

report. Virginia is one state that requires an updated reserve every five years,

and requires reserve reports be given to prospective purchasers.

• Refinancing firms are requiring reserve reports be updated on a regular bases,

and in some cases will not finance a mortgage if the report is not current or the

property is not properly funded.  These include Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and

FHA loans.

• Fiduciary responsibility is another concern. Present and past board members

have been sued personally for not having proper management performed when it

comes to properly assessing homeowners for future repairs.

• To maintain the community and protect owners investment.

• To prevent special assessments.

• Buyers are becoming more aware of how community properties are funded and

are requesting a review of financial reports before purchasing.

What components go into a reserve report? 

• Any common or limited common component that is not life of building will require

replacement or repair over the life of the property and are not performed

annually. Items such as landscaping are performed annually, but some

properties may require a landscaping fund for major projects like removing trees.



• Depending on the size of the property financial limits are set to eliminate small 

items, which will be expended out of the general maintenance fund. For example, 

properties of 100 + units may exclude items under $1,000.00. Properties with 10 

or less units may exclude items under $100.00.  

• Most properties do not reserve for individual parts of components, such as 

motors for fans, ballast for lights or tubes for chillers for example.  

 

How do we know how long a component will last?  

In the financial plan, we use typical property historical information, industry documents 
such as AIA literature, ASHRAE literature, and manufactures literature, which list 
expected life of materials and components.    

How do we know how much a repair or replacement cost?  

Most companies use standard cost guild literature such as Means Construction Cost or 
The National Insurance Cost Guide. Property Diagnostics is regularly involved in 
property replacements and repairs, and has developed its own database of costs 
projections.  

Component vs. Cash Flow 

Component method is required to develop the list of components and cost, but most all 
properties use the cash flow method. The cash flow method calculates anticipated 
expenditures for the property over the next thirty years.  
 

When to use funds from the reserve 
Reserve funds should only be used when a component or a section of a component is 
replaced in full, or in part that will not be discarded when additional replacement occurs.  
Some examples of when to use reserve funds.  

• Sectional concrete replacement  

• Large sections of piping replacement 

• Higher percentages of pointing work 

• Large sections of painting  

• Individual floor carpeting  
 

Some examples of when not to use reserve funds  

• Roof patching  

• Asphalt patching  

• Minor plumbing repairs 

• Mechanical equipment repairs 



How often should a reserve report be updated?  

The APRA (Association of Professional Reserve Analysis) believes a reserve should be 

updated every year. Most properties should have the reserve updated by a professional 

every three to five years.  

There are three levels of updating reserve reports.   

• Level 1 is updating cost without a site visit. 

• Level 2 is updating costs and reviewing remaining life of components with a site 

visit.  

• Level 3 is developing an inventory, setting remaining life of components and 

developing cost projections.    

Reserve reports are not budgets.  

A budget is an itemized summary of estimated or intended expenditures for a given 

period along with proposals for financing them. 

Reserve reports are a financial plan. 

A financial plan is a forecast of the expected financial position, and the results of 

operations and cash flows based on expected conditions.  

A reserve report does not anticipate exactly when monies will be used to repair or 

maintain components on a property. The reserve report anticipates when properties will 

likely or possibly require funds to maintain a component.  

With every reserve report the components fall into one of three categories these are:  

• Subjective   

• Fixed  

• Variable  

Subjective items are items that are replaced depending on owners’ preferences or 

tolerations. These components do not need to be replaced, but have been set with 

industry standard remaining life.  



Examples of Subjective Components include items like:  

• Carpeting  

• Interior painting  

• Elevator cab refurbishment 

• Interior lighting  

 

Fixed items are items that fail on regular bases having little variation between 

properties.  

Examples of Fixed Components include items like: 

• Roof systems  

• Exterior painting  

• Caulking  

• Asphalt surfaces  

 

Variable items are items that vary widely pertaining to life cycles on properties.  

Examples of Variable Components include items like: 

• Elevators  

• Mechanical equipment 

• Electrical switchgear  

• Piping  

• Fire alarm systems  

 

Owners should be aware of these types of issues when reviewing their reserve reports, 

and engage with the reserve firm to tailor their plans to meet and suite their needs.  

Is there a formula to state what an average per unit reserve 

should have on hand as a minimum?  

The true answer to this question is no, but financial institutions have set a requirement 

that a community should have at least ten percent of the annual operating budget set 

aside in the reserve fund. Therefore, no property should be under the ten percent 

requirement.  

The reason there is no set per unit amount determined as a baseline for minimum 

reserve is that properties or communities vary widely as to their common property.  



Looking at four different 100-unit properties calling the properties A – D.  

• Property A has 100 units, on this property there is typical common equipment, a 

swimming pool, exercise room, community room, limited common balconies, a 

roof deck, a large lobby with front desk, central heating and mechanical plant, 

and an underground garage.   

• Property B has 100 units, on this property there is typical common equipment, an 

exercise room, community room, roof deck, central heating and mechanical 

plant, and an underground garage.   

• Property C has 100 units, on this property there is typical common equipment, a 

roof deck, and a central heating and air conditioning plant.  

• Property D has 100 units, on this property there is typical common equipment 

with nothing additional.  

How can a property have confidence that their reserve report 

will meet their needs?  

• Engage services from experienced certified professional firms. Choose local 

firms to perform services, which better understands the local market and local 

contractors. Local firms are also available to meet with owners and work closely 

with managers.  

• Know what is common and limited common on your site.  

• Report problems such as past piping leaks, roof leaks, and others. 

• Report past replacement such as carpet replacement, exterior caulking 

replacement and others.  

• Report plans for upgrades or planned projects.   

• Report age of property and when the property was converted.  

• Report contacts such as elevator service personnel, mechanical contractor, 

plumbing contractor and others.  

• Know what the property owns such as fences, walls, walks and other.  

 



What if you receive proposals for work significantly higher 

than the estimated reserve figure or contractors report 

significantly lower remaining life span than reported in your 

reserve? 

Contact your reserve service provider. They may be very helpful in addressing issues. 

We had a client that we estimated the roof to have a remaining life of five years an 

estimated the cost to replace at $38,000.00. They received three proposals with the 

lowest quoting $78,000.00. They contacted our firm to ask how we could be so far off. 

Looking at the proposals we discovered the proposals included a lot of things the 

property did not need. Luckily, they contacted us and we solicited bids for the base roof 

replacement, which was replaced for $36,580.00.  

The following items are considered life of building and are 

not included in your report. 

Building framing  

Interior doors  

Drywall 

Interior trim  

Stair systems 

As well as site specific items not reflected in this report considered by the inspector to 

be life of building.  
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I. COMPONENT METHOD 
 

The Chart of Repair & Replacement Reserves is a compilation of architectural, 
structural, mechanical, and electrical elements, which represent estimated 
replacement and/or major repair items and their present day dollar value. 

 
The charting of items identifies and quantifies the component items, the 
estimated cost to repair or replace those items, and the target date with which 
those repairs or replacements are projected to take place.  The annual 
contribution is the total cost for repair or replacement, divided by the repair cycle 
or target date.  This cost has been presented in today’s dollars and has not been 
extrapolated to a future date.  Note: Monies escrowed for future repairs or 
replacement earns interest, which offsets additional costs caused by inflation. 

 
The chart delineates Reserve/Replacement items.  Some items of work or 
systems must be totally replaced in a given year.  However, many of the items, in 
practice, will be repaired or replaced in phases.  An example would be a reserve 
figure to replace concrete walls shown as a total amount to be spent in ten years; 
in reality sectional replacement is likely.   

 
Items listed in the Reserve/Replacement column are intended solely as 
conceptual estimates and overview of the project’s physical facilities, and do not 
represent detailed estimates of system(s) based upon bid documents or other 
detailed engineering or architectural analysis or physical surveys. 

 
Column #1, entitled “Item”, is a brief identification of site components.  For a 
more detailed explanation of the work task, see the narrative description of work 
items that follows each categorical chart.  The description is an explanation of the 
logic involved in the preparation of the estimated costs for repair or replacement. 

 
Column #2, entitled “Quantity”, refers to the quantity of a material or system 
furnished and installed.  Following the quantity is a unit’s abbreviation, which is 
as follows: 

 
Ea =  Each or portion of total system. 
 
SQ =  Square of roof or 100 S.F. 
 
SF =  Square Foot 
 
LF = Linear Foot 
 
SY = Square Yard 
 
LS = Lump Sum-Total costs of those items required to make the description 

(task) operational when finite quantities are not defined. 
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Lot = Entire system where quantities are not defined or are inter-dependent. 
 
Unit = Each or portion of total system. 
 
Sys = Mechanical system complete, including attendant mechanical work to 

make system function. 
 
LOB = Life of Building 

 
Column #3, entitled “Normal Useful Life”, this figure represents a conceptual 
number of years, which a given item or system can be expected to last at the 
time of installation.  This figure is derived by using professional judgment and 
through observations made in the field. 

 
Column #4, entitled “Estimated Remaining Life”, this figure represents the 
estimated time that an existing item or system can be expected to remain useful.  
This figure is derived by using professional judgment where items or systems 
show unusual wear or unusual preservation, or if the items are new by 
subtracting actual age of the existing item or system from the “Normal Useful 
Life”. 

 
Column #5, entitled “Current Replacement Cost”, reflects the estimated cost to 
replace and install an item or system or to perform the described work task.  This 
figure is calculated using industry-accepted standards, comparing various 
industry sources and using professional judgment.  Property Diagnostics, Inc. 
refers to Means price guides, Dodge price guides, and our in-house database.  
These figures are for conceptual purposes only and are not based upon detailed 
engineering or architectural analysis, bid documents, or detailed physical 
surveys. 

 
Column #6, entitled “Current Fund”, reflects monies presently assigned to 
replacement of the indicated system or item in the Replacement Reserve Fund.  
This figure is derived by those parties responsible for allocating funds or by 
Property Diagnostics, Inc. as directed by those responsible parties. 

 
Column #7, entitled “Required Fund”, represents those funds required to reach 
the Current Replacement Cost.  The figure is calculated using the “Current 
Replacement Cost” less the “Current Fund”. 

 
Column #8, entitled “Annual Contribution”, reflects those monies that should be 
set aside on an annual basis in order to have the item or system fully funded at 
completion of the expected useful life period.  This figure is calculated by dividing 
the “Required Fund” by the “Estimated Remaining Life”. 
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CURRENT

REPLACEMENT CURRENT REQUIRED ANNUAL

COST FUND FUND CONTRIBUTION

A. Architectural Grounds $244,596.00 $27,684.32 $216,911.68 $18,224.16

B. Building Envelope 570,356.00 51,088.00 519,268.00 64,852.22

C. Building Interior 37,880.00 11,360.00 26,520.00 6,774.67

D. Mechanical/Plumbing/Electrical 447,720.00 10,486.22 437,233.78 29,159.53

TOTAL: $1,300,552.00 $100,618.54 $1,199,933.46 $119,010.58

DOWNTOWN I & II

PROPERTY DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT RESERVE - SUMMARY

ITEM
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NORMAL ESTIMATED CURRENT

USEFUL LIFE REMAINING LIFE REPLACEMENT CURRENT REQUIRED ANNUAL

(Years) (Years) COST FUND FUND CONTRIBUTION

1. Stamped Concrete Walk 1,376 SF 35 10 $38,304.00 $0.00 $38,304.00 $3,830.40

2. Brick Retaining Walls 2,950 SF 40 15 35,400.00 0.00 35,400.00 2,360.00

3. Metal Rail 718 LF 10 2 5,200.00 4,160.00 1,040.00 520.00

4. Metal Fence 182 LF 10 2 4,800.00 3,840.00 960.00 480.00

5. Metal Gates 3 25 2 1,200.00 1,104.00 96.00 48.00

6. Concrete 2,682 SF 50 18 48,276.00 15,448.32 32,827.68 1,823.76

7. Concrete Stairs Lower 11 40 18 13,200.00 0.00 13,200.00 733.33

8. Mailboxes 48 30 10 7,200.00 0.00 7,200.00 720.00

9. Concrete Parking 3,256 SF 40 12 84,656.00 0.00 84,656.00 7,054.67

10. Wheel Stops 12 30 6 2,880.00 0.00 2,880.00 480.00

11. Wood Screen Fence 48 LF 20 2 3,480.00 3,132.00 348.00 174.00

   
 
TOTAL: $244,596.00 $27,684.32 $216,911.68 $18,224.16

DOWNTOWN I & II

A.   ARCHITECTURAL GROUNDS

PROPERTY DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

QUANTITYITEM

 
 



Downtown I & II Component Method August 8, 2016 

Project #316036   

 

Property Diagnostics, Inc. 7 
 

 
A. REPAIR & REPLACEMENT RESERVE - ARCHITECTURAL GROUNDS 
 
Item Number Description 
   
1. Stamped Concrete Walk The estimated replacement cost for concrete includes 

the removal of the existing concrete and replacement 
of new concrete.  New concrete will be reinforced with 
a rebar material and rated for 3,000 PSI. 
 

2. Brick Retaining Walls Brick landscape walls should never require full 
replacement if properly maintained.  The estimated 
replacement cost is for repair and reconstruction of 
the wall during the remaining life.  Repairs would 
include reconstruction and repointing of approximately 
15% of the wall. 
 

3. Metal Rails Metal rails are thought to be life of building.  However, 
they will require repair and restoration within the 
remaining life.  The estimated cost anticipates re-
welding and minor repairs to 30% of the metal rail 
system.  It is not anticipated that all the railing will 
require repairs at any given time.  As such, this item 
should be viewed as a draw fund to make corrections 
as needed. 
 

4. Metal Fence The replacement cost for the metal fencing estimates 
the replacement cost to properly maintain the fencing.  
It is anticipated that on a regular basis the fencing will 
be refinished and that at times metal repairs will be 
required including replacement of base posts and re-
welding pickets as needed.   
 

5. Metal Gates The metal gate is thought to be life of building.  
However, it will require repair and restoration within 
the remaining life.  The estimated cost anticipates re-
welding and minor repairs to a maximum of 30% of 
the metal rail surfaces.  This item should be viewed 
as a draw fund to make corrections as needed. 
 

6. Concrete The estimated replacement cost for concrete includes 
the removal of the existing concrete and replacement 
of new concrete.  New concrete will be reinforced with 
a rebar material and rated for 3,000 PSI. 
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A. REPAIR & REPLACEMENT RESERVE - ARCHITECTURAL GROUNDS 
 
Item Number Description 
   
7. Concrete Stairs Lower The estimated replacement cost for concrete includes 

the removal of the existing concrete and replacement 
of new concrete.  New concrete will be reinforced with 
a rebar material and rated for 3,000 PSI. 
 

8. Mailboxes The estimated replacement cost is for replacement of 
the existing mailboxes with new mailboxes of similar 
style and quality. 
 

9. Concrete Parking The estimated replacement cost for concrete parking 
includes removal of the existing concrete and 
replacement of new concrete.  New concrete will be 
reinforced with a rebar material and rated for 3,000 
psi.  The concrete line item replacement fund should 
be considered a draw fund.  Concrete never requires 
full replacement at one time.  However, it does require 
sectional replacement.  Over the life span of the 
concrete, it is anticipated that all concrete will be 
renewed at least once. 
 

10. Wheel Stops There are concrete wheel stops on-site.  The estimate 
is for the replacement of the wheel stops and signs 
with similar units. 
 

11. Wood Screen Fence The estimated replacement cost for wood fence is 
based on replacement of the existing wood fencing 
system with a new fencing system of equal style and 
quality. 
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NORMAL ESTIMATED CURRENT

USEFUL LIFE REMAINING LIFE REPLACEMENT CURRENT REQUIRED ANNUAL

(Years) (Years) COST FUND FUND CONTRIBUTION

1. Exterior Painting Lot 10 1 $17,600.00 $17,600.00 $0.00 $0.00

2. Roof System 11,860 SF 20 4 147,616.00 0.00 147,616.00 36,904.00

3. Entry Doors 8 35 9 12,800.00 0.00 12,800.00 1,422.22

4. Entry Porches 6 40 18 20,400.00 0.00 20,400.00 1,133.33

5. Brick Pointing Lot 40 18 280,000.00 0.00 280,000.00 15,555.56

6. Building Caulking Lot 15 2 38,640.00 33,488.00 5,152.00 2,576.00

7. Skylights Common 8 30 9 11,200.00 0.00 11,200.00 1,244.44

8. Skylights Unit 50 30 6 32,500.00 0.00 32,500.00 5,416.67

9. Window Wells Lot 40 16 9,600.00 0.00 9,600.00 600.00

      

TOTAL: $570,356.00 $51,088.00 $519,268.00 $64,852.22

DOWNTOWN I & II

B.   BUILDING EXTERIOR

PROPERTY DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

ITEM QUANTITY
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B. REPAIR & REPLACEMENT RESERVE – BUILDING ENVELOPE 
 
Item Number Description 
   
1. Exterior Painting The estimated replacement cost for exterior painting 

is based on replacement of the existing paint and 
finish on the exterior windows, building trim and metal 
work with a single coat of exterior paint. 
 

2. Roof System By the end of the normal useful life span, the building 
will consider major renewal of the flat roof system.  
The scope of work includes removal of the existing 
materials and installation of a new roof system. 
 

3. Entry Doors The estimated replacement cost for entrance doors is 
for replacement of the existing entrance doors with 
new doors of similar design and quality. 
 

4. Entry Porches Although porches are considered life of building, they 
will require normal maintenance.  Cracking and 
damage of the concrete is anticipated, and the 
estimated replacement cost is for restoration of porch 
entries as needed. 
 

5. Brick Pointing Over a normal useful life span, it is recommended that 
defective mortar joints be renewed as needed.  This 
replacement reserve cost category has considered 
removal of defective mortar and installation of new 
mortar as needed.   
 

6. Building Caulking The estimated replacement cost for caulking is for 
replacement of caulking around windows, doors and 
building joints.  The caulking replacement cost 
anticipates full removal of the existing caulking, 
removal of backer rod material, and installation of new 
materials. 
 

7. Skylights Common The estimated replacement cost for skylights is to 
maintain the skylights in good order, replacing the 
gasketing material when needed. 
 

8. Skylights Unit The estimated replacement cost for skylights is to 
maintain the skylights in good order, replacing the 
gasketing material when needed. 
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B. REPAIR & REPLACEMENT RESERVE – BUILDING ENVELOPE 
 
Item Number Description 
   
9. Window Wells The estimated replacement cost for window wells is 

based on replacement of the existing window wells 
with new window wells of equal style and quality. 
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NORMAL ESTIMATED CURRENT

USEFUL LIFE REMAINING LIFE REPLACEMENT CURRENT REQUIRED ANNUAL

(Years) (Years) COST FUND FUND CONTRIBUTION

1. Floor Tile 240 SF 25 3 $12,800.00 $0.00 $12,800.00 $4,266.67

2. Rubber Stairs Tread Covers 128           18 10 10,880.00 0.00 10,880.00 1,088.00

3. Interior Painting Lot 10 2 14,200.00 11,360.00 2,840.00 1,420.00

       

TOTAL: $37,880.00 $11,360.00 $26,520.00 $6,774.67

DOWNTOWN I & II

C.   BUILDING INTERIOR 

PROPERTY DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

ITEM QUANTITY
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C. REPAIR & REPLACEMENT RESERVE – BUILDING INTERIOR 
 
Item Number Description 
   
1. Vinyl Flooring The estimated replacement cost is for the 

replacement of the existing vinyl flooring system with 
a new similar vinyl flooring system.   
 

2. Rubber Stair Tread 
Covers 

The estimated replacement cost of stair treads is for 
the replacement of the existing stair treads with new 
stair treads of similar design and quality. 
 

3. Interior Painting Interior painting includes the interior finish areas.  The 
estimated cost reflects the cost to replace the existing 
finish with a new single coat of paint.   
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NORMAL ESTIMATED CURRENT

USEFUL LIFE REMAINING LIFE REPLACEMENT CURRENT REQUIRED ANNUAL

(Years) (Years) COST FUND FUND CONTRIBUTION

1. Exterior Lighting 28              30 13 $5,880.00 $0.00 $5,880.00 $452.31

2. Main Electrical Switchgear Lot 40 15 52,000.00 0.00 52,000.00 3,466.67

3. Entry System 8                18 4 22,400.00 0.00 22,400.00 5,600.00

4. Domestic Piping Lot 40 14 182,400.00 10,486.22 171,913.78 12,279.56

5. Waste Piping Lot 60 32 153,600.00 0.00 153,600.00 4,800.00

6. Interior Lights 16              25 6 2,880.00 0.00 2,880.00 480.00

7. Exit Lights 8                25 10 1,280.00 0.00 1,280.00 128.00

8. Emergency Lights 8                20 10 1,280.00 0.00 1,280.00 128.00

9. Fire Alarm System Lot 40 16 22,800.00 0.00 22,800.00 1,425.00

10. Pole Light 1                30 8 3,200.00 0.00 3,200.00 400.00

       

TOTAL: $447,720.00 $10,486.22 $437,233.78 $29,159.53

DOWNTOWN I & II

PROPERTY DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

D.   MECHANICAL/PLUMBING/ELECTRICAL

QUANTITYITEM
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D. REPAIR & REPLACEMENT RESERVE – MECHANICAL/PLUMBING/ELECTRICAL 
 
Item Number Description 
   
1. Exterior Lighting The estimated replacement cost for exterior lighting is 

based on replacement of the existing lighting fixtures 
with similar fixtures. 
 

2. Main Electrical 
Switchgear 

The estimated replacement cost is for replacement of 
the existing main switchgear with new switchgear of 
equal ratings and load capacity. 
 

3. Entry System The estimated replacement cost for entry system is 
for replacement of the building electronic entries with 
a system of similar design and quality.   
 

4. Domestic Piping The estimated replacement cost of the domestic 
piping is based on replacement of the existing piping 
with new piping.  It is not intended to be replaced at 
one time.  We recommend that this be considered a 
draw fund and, as repairs are made, the reserve 
should be drawn on. 
 

5. Waste Piping The estimated replacement cost of the waste piping is 
based on replacement of the existing piping with new 
piping.  It is not intended to be replaced at one time.  
We recommend that this be considered a draw fund 
and, as repairs are made, the reserve should be 
drawn on. 
 

6. Interior Lights The estimated replacement cost for interior lighting is 
based on replacement of the existing lighting fixtures 
with similar fixtures. 
 

7. Exit Lights The estimated replacement cost is for replacement of 
the existing exit lighting with new, more efficient 
lighting systems.   
 

8. Emergency Lights The estimated replacement cost for emergency 
lighting anticipates the replacement requirement of 
the existing lighting units after the normal useful life.  
The replacement will include removal of the existing 
units and installation of newer similar units as 
required. 
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D. REPAIR & REPLACEMENT RESERVE – MECHANICAL/PLUMBING/ELECTRICAL 
 
Item Number Description 
   
9. Fire Alarm System The estimated replacement cost anticipates 

replacement of the main fire alarm system.  This does 
not include the pull stations, bells or detectors as 
these are typically handled through maintenance 
and/or are considered life of building. 
 

10. Pole Lighting The estimated replacement cost for the exterior pole 
lighting is for replacement of the existing pole lighting 
with new lighting fixtures of similar style and quality.   
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II. CASH FLOW METHOD 
 

The Cash Flow Method incorporates the repair and replacement needs of the 
property over the next thirty years, to include anticipated repair/replacement of 
components and materials that are performed sectionally.  A percentage of these 
items are ascribed to the Cash Flow Chart throughout the thirty-year chart.  The 
Cash Flow Method allows the property owners to reserve funds to maintain the 
property based on the limited estimated requirements over the next thirty years.   
 
The Cash Flow Section of the report extrapolates requirements stated in the 
Component Method section of the report.   
 
The Cash Flow Breakdown chart outlines the first column in years, the second 
column shows total expenditures for each year, column three shows the 
property’s yearly contribution, column four shows cash on hand or total property 
reserve, column five shows Property Diagnostics, Inc.’s annual contribution 
recommendation, and column six shows cash on hand or total property reserve 
based on Property Diagnostics, Inc.’s recommendation.  The first year of column 
three shows the reported current property reserve balance.   
 
The current reserve fund provided to Property Diagnostics, Inc. is $100,619. The 
property’s annual contribution is $68,859. The amount of funding meets the 
needs for this property.  Based on our calculations, the property will have 
$582,408 at the end of thirty years. 
 
The second cash flow chart on page 19 shows the replacement cost with an 
inflation rate of 1%, per year, and the current fund with an interest earned rate of 
1%, per year. The total amount at the end of thirty years will be $351,792. 
 
The third cash flow chart on page 20 shows the replacement cost with an 
inflation rate of 3%, per year, and the current fund with an interest earned rate of 
2.3% per year. At the end of thirty years, the property will have a negative 
amount of ($60,831). 
 
We recommend the property update the reserve study every three to five years.  
This update would readjust the reserve requirements for the property based on 
actual experiences and conditions.   
 
The first bar chart shows graphically the cash expenditures and cash on hand 
based on property’s yearly contribution.  The second bar chart shows graphically 
the cash expenditures and cash on hand based on Property Diagnostics, Inc.’s 
recommendation.  The following section of the report identifies specifically items 
to be repaired/replaced for each year and the method or component, which is 
specified.   
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Year

Total 

Replacement 

Costs / 30yrs

Downtown I & II's 

Yearly Contribution

Current Fund based 

on  Downtown I & II's 

Contribution

Recommended 

Yearly Contribution

Current Fund based on 

Recommended Yearly 

Contribution

 100,619$                100,619$                   

2017 17,600$                 68,859$                       151,878$                        68,859$                      151,878$                            

2018 67,520$                 68,859$                       153,217$                        68,859$                      153,217$                            

2019 18,110$                 68,859$                       203,966$                        68,859$                      203,966$                            

2020 174,576$              68,859$                       98,249$                           68,859$                      98,249$                              

2021 4,560$                   68,859$                       162,548$                        68,859$                      162,548$                            

2022 47,380$                 68,859$                       184,027$                        68,859$                      184,027$                            

2023 15,396$                 68,859$                       237,490$                        68,859$                      237,490$                            

2024 21,440$                 68,859$                       284,909$                        68,859$                      284,909$                            

2025 42,240$                 68,859$                       311,528$                        68,859$                      311,528$                            

2026 86,304$                 68,859$                       294,083$                        68,859$                      294,083$                            

2027 44,960$                 68,859$                       317,982$                        68,859$                      317,982$                            

2028 148,017$              68,859$                       238,824$                        68,859$                      238,824$                            

2029 37,800$                 68,859$                       269,883$                        68,859$                      269,883$                            

2030 -$                       68,859$                       338,742$                        68,859$                      338,742$                            

2031 87,400$                 68,859$                       320,201$                        68,859$                      320,201$                            

2032 32,400$                 68,859$                       356,660$                        68,859$                      356,660$                            

2033 46,847$                 68,859$                       378,672$                        68,859$                      378,672$                            

2034 313,600$              68,859$                       133,931$                        68,859$                      133,931$                            

2035 -$                       68,859$                       202,790$                        68,859$                      202,790$                            

2036 -$                       68,859$                       271,649$                        68,859$                      271,649$                            

2037 17,600$                 68,859$                       322,908$                        68,859$                      322,908$                            

2038 63,092$                 68,859$                       328,675$                        68,859$                      328,675$                            

2039 3,840$                   68,859$                       393,694$                        68,859$                      393,694$                            

2040 155,296$              68,859$                       307,257$                        68,859$                      307,257$                            

2041 7,680$                   68,859$                       368,436$                        68,859$                      368,436$                            

2042 15,360$                 68,859$                       421,935$                        68,859$                      421,935$                            

2043 17,043$                 68,859$                       473,751$                        68,859$                      473,751$                            

2044 46,720$                 68,859$                       495,890$                        68,859$                      495,890$                            

2045 23,040$                 68,859$                       541,709$                        68,859$                      541,709$                            

2046 28,160$                 68,859$                       582,408$                        68,859$                      582,408$                            

DOWNTOWN I & II

UNINFLATED CASH FLOW BREAKDOWN 
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Year

Total 

Replacement 

Costs / 30yrs with 

1% Inflation

Downtown I & II's 

Yearly Contribution 

Current Fund based on  

Downtown I & II's 

Contribution

Current Fund based on  

Downtown I & II's 

Contribution with 1% 

Interest Earned

 100,619$                   

2017 17,776$                  68,859$                          151,702$                            $153,219

2018 68,870$                  68,859$                          151,690$                            153,207

2019 18,653$                  68,859$                          201,896$                            203,413

2020 181,559$                68,859$                          89,196$                              90,713

2021 4,788$                    68,859$                          153,267$                            154,784

2022 50,223$                  68,859$                          171,903$                            173,420

2023 16,474$                  68,859$                          224,288$                            225,805

2024 23,155$                  68,859$                          269,992$                            271,509

2025 46,042$                  68,859$                          292,809$                            294,326

2026 94,934$                  68,859$                          266,734$                            268,251

2027 49,906$                  68,859$                          285,687$                            287,204

2028 165,779$                68,859$                          188,767$                            190,284

2029 42,714$                  68,859$                          214,912$                            216,429

2030 -$                         68,859$                          283,771$                            285,288

2031 100,510$                68,859$                          252,120$                            253,637

2032 37,584$                  68,859$                          283,395$                            284,912

2033 54,811$                  68,859$                          297,443$                            298,960

2034 370,048$                68,859$                          (3,746)$                               (2,229)

2035 -$                         68,859$                          65,113$                              66,630

2036 -$                         68,859$                          133,972$                            135,489

2037 21,296$                  68,859$                          181,535$                            183,052

2038 76,972$                  68,859$                          173,422$                            174,939

2039 4,723$                    68,859$                          237,558$                            239,075

2040 192,567$                68,859$                          113,850$                            115,367

2041 9,600$                    68,859$                          173,109$                            174,626

2042 19,354$                  68,859$                          222,614$                            224,131

2043 21,645$                  68,859$                          269,829$                            271,346

2044 59,802$                  68,859$                          278,886$                            280,403

2045 29,722$                  68,859$                          318,024$                            319,541

2046 36,608$                  68,859$                          350,275$                            351,792

DOWNTOWN I & II

INFLATED CASH FLOW BREAKDOWN 
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Year

Total 

Replacement 

Costs / 30yrs with 

3% Inflation

Downtown I & II's 

Yearly Contribution 

Current Fund based on 

Downtown I & II's 

Contribution

Current Fund based on 

Downtown I & II's 

Contribution with 2.3% 

Interest Earned

 100,619$                   

2017 18,128$                  68,859$                          151,350$                            154,831$                                  

2018 71,571$                  68,859$                          148,637$                            155,679$                                  

2019 19,740$                  68,859$                          197,756$                            208,379$                                  

2020 195,525$                68,859$                          71,090$                              86,506$                                    

2021 5,244$                    68,859$                          134,705$                            152,110$                                  

2022 55,908$                  68,859$                          147,656$                            168,560$                                  

2023 18,629$                  68,859$                          197,886$                            222,666$                                  

2024 26,586$                  68,859$                          240,159$                            270,061$                                  

2025 53,645$                  68,859$                          255,373$                            291,487$                                  

2026 112,195$                68,859$                          212,037$                            254,855$                                  

2027 59,797$                  68,859$                          221,099$                            269,778$                                  

2028 201,303$                68,859$                          88,655$                              143,539$                                  

2029 52,542$                  68,859$                          104,972$                            163,158$                                  

2030 -$                         68,859$                          173,831$                            235,769$                                  

2031 126,730$                68,859$                          115,960$                            183,321$                                  

2032 47,952$                  68,859$                          136,867$                            208,444$                                  

2033 70,739$                  68,859$                          134,987$                            211,359$                                  

2034 482,944$                68,859$                          (279,098)$                           (197,865)$                                 

2035 -$                         68,859$                          (210,239)$                           (133,557)$                                 

2036 -$                         68,859$                          (141,380)$                           (67,770)$                                   

2037 28,688$                  68,859$                          (101,209)$                           (29,158)$                                   

2038 104,733$                68,859$                          (137,082)$                           (65,702)$                                   

2039 6,490$                    68,859$                          (74,713)$                             (4,844)$                                     

2040 267,109$                68,859$                          (272,963)$                           (203,205)$                                 

2041 13,440$                  68,859$                          (217,544)$                           (152,460)$                                 

2042 27,341$                  68,859$                          (176,026)$                           (114,448)$                                 

2043 30,848$                  68,859$                          (138,015)$                           (79,069)$                                   

2044 85,965$                  68,859$                          (155,121)$                           (97,994)$                                   

2045 43,085$                  68,859$                          (129,346)$                           (74,473)$                                   

2046 53,504$                  68,859$                          (113,991)$                           (60,831)$                                   

INFLATED CASH FLOW BREAKDOWN 

DOWNTOWN I & II
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SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2017 Exterior Painting $17,600 
      Total for 2017 $17,600 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2018 Metal Rail $5,200 
 Metal Fence 4,800 
 Metal Gates 1,200 
 Wood Screen Fence 3,480 
 Building Caulking 38,640 
 Interior Painting 14,200 
      Total for 2018 $67,520 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2019 Floor Tile $12,800 
 Concrete – 11% 5,310 
      Total for 2019 $18,110 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2020 Roof System $147,616 
 Entry System 22,400 
 Domestic Piping – 2.5% 4,560 
      Total for 2020 $174,576 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2021 Domestic Piping – 2.5% $4,560 
      Total for 2021 $4,560 
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SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2022 Wheel Stops $2,880 
 Skylights Unit 32,500 

 Interior Lights 2,880 

 Domestic Piping – 5% 9,120 
      Total for 2022 $47,380 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2023 Concrete – 13% $6,276 
 Domestic Piping – 5% 9,120 
      Total for 2023 $15,396 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2024 Pole Light $3,200 
 Domestic Piping – 10% 18,240 
      Total for 2024 $21,440 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2025 Entry Doors $12,800 
 Skylights Common 11,200 
 Domestic Piping – 10% 18,240 
       Total for 2025 $42,240 
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SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2026 Stamped Concrete Walk $38,304 
 Mailboxes 7,200 
 Rubber Stairs Tread Covers 10,880 
 Exit Lights 1,280 
 Emergency Lights 1,280 
 Domestic Piping – 15% 27,360 
       Total for 2026 $86,304 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2027 Exterior Painting $17,600 
 Domestic Piping – 15% 27,360 
      Total for 2027 $44,960 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2028 Metal Rail $5,200 
 Metal Fence 4,800 
 Concrete Parking 84,656 
 Interior Painting 14,200 
 Concrete – 15% 7,241 
 Domestic Piping – 17.5% 31,920 
       Total for 2028 $148,017 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2029 Exterior Lighting $5,880 
 Domestic Piping – 17.5% 31,920 
       Total for 2029 $37,800 
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SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2030   
       Total for 2030 $0 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2031 Brick Retaining Walls $35,400 
 Main Electrical Switchgear 52,000 
      Total for 2031 $87,400 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2032 Window Wells $9,600 
 Fire Alarm System 22,800 
      Total for 2032 $32,400 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2033 Building Caulking $38,640 
 Concrete – 17% 8,207 
      Total for 2033 $46,847 

  

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2034 Concrete Stairs Lower $13,200 
 Entry Porches 20,400 
 Brick Pointing 280,000 
      Total for 2034 $313,600 
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SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2035   
      Total for 2035 $0 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2036   
      Total for 2036 $0 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2037 Exterior Painting $17,600 
      Total for 2037 $17,600 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2038 Metal Rail $5,200 
 Metal Fence 4,800 
 Wood Screen Fence 3,480 
 Interior Painting 14,200 
 Entry System 22,400 
 Concrete – 19% 9,172 
 Waste Piping – 2.5% 3,840 
      Total for 2038 $63,092 

 

  

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2039 Waste Piping – 2.5% $3,840 
      Total for 2039 $3,840 
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SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2040 Roof System $147,616 
 Waste Piping – 5% 7,680 
      Total for 2040 $155,296 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2041 Waste Piping – 5% $7,680 
      Total for 2041 $7,680 

 

  

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2042 Waste Piping – 10% $15,360 
      Total for 2042 $15,360 

 

  

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2043 Metal Gates $1,200 
 Concrete – 1% 483 
 Waste Piping – 10% 15,360 
      Total for 2043 $17,043 

 

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2044 Floor Tile $12,800 
 Rubber Stairs Tread Covers 10,880 
 Waste Piping – 15% 23,040 
      Total for 2044 $46,720 
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SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2045 Waste Piping – 15% $23,040 
      Total for 2045 $23,040 

   

 

SUMMARY OF YEARLY EXPENDITURES 

Year Item to be Replaced 
Cost of 

Replacement 

2046 Emergency Lights $1,280 
 Waste Piping – 17.5% 26,880 
      Total for 2046 $28,160 
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III. INSPECTION OBSERVATIONS / PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Photo #1: Downtown II roof system  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Photo #2: Downtown II roof system 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Photo #3: Outside of building 1225 
there is a differential in the walk, 
which presents a trip hazard. 
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Photo #4: Joints between concrete 
and brick walls. This should be 
sealed with caulking, which would 
prevent damages to the subbase 
materials. 

 

 
 
 
 

Photo #5: Joints between concrete 
and brick walls. This should be 
sealed with caulking, which would 
prevent damages to the subbase 
materials. 

 

 
 
 
 

Photo #6: Rail systems on a regular 
basis require to be refinished. 
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Photo #7: Joints between concrete 
and brick walls. This should be 
sealed with caulking, which would 
prevent damages to the subbase 
materials. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Photo #8: At the front of the 
buildings, there is a lower concrete 
walk area and retaining wall. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Photo #9: Downtown I, roof system 
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Photo #10: Downtown I, roof system 
access. 

 

 
 
 

Photo #11: On the roof we noted that 
there are components for 
equipment, which have been 
abandoned. These should be 
removed from the site, and the 
contractor should be required to 
discharge the material. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Photo #12: At the building entries on 
12th Street, the doors require to be 
refinished. 
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Photo #13: There are some minor 
issues with the tile floors. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Photo #14: Rear stamped concrete 
walk 

 

 
 
 
 

Photo #15: In some areas ivy is 
growing on the building, which 
should be prevented. Ivy will cause 
damages to the wall systems. 
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Photo #16: Rear unit fence screens 

 

 
 
 
 

Photo #17: Joints between concrete 
and brick walls. This should be 
sealed with caulking, which would 
prevent damages to the subbase 
materials. 

 

 
Photo #18: At the rear of 11th Street, 

the building has brick installed to 
create a dam. This presents a 
hazardous condition. In this same 
area, the concrete walk is cracked 
and lifted. Consideration should be 
given to installing a landing at this 
area, which would operate as a dam 
and meet legal requirements as well 
as repair the cracked area. 
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Photo #19: Cracked concrete 

 

 
 
 
 

Photo #20: Joints between concrete 
and brick walls. This should be 
sealed with caulking, which would 
prevent damages to the subbase 
materials. 

 

 
 
 
 

Photo #21: The caulking of the 
windows is deteriorated, and should 
be scheduled for replacement in the 
near future. 



Downtown I & II Photographs August 8, 2016 

Project #316036   

 

Property Diagnostics, Inc. 37 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Photo #22: The rear of the building 
windows require to be refinished. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Photo #23: Newly installed fence at 
Downtown II 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Photo #24: Electric service to units 
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Photo #25: Some of the lower boxes 
for the electric service are oxidizing. 
Consideration should be given to 
having these cleaned and painted. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Photo #26: Property mailboxes 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Photo #27: Newly installed fence at 
Downtown II has a missing post. 
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Photo #28: At the rear of building on 
12th Street there is a large crack 
that should be properly repaired 
and monitored. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Photo #29: There are cracks in the 
concrete parking, which should be 
sealed. 

 

 
 
 
 

Photo #30: One section of the rear 
concrete parking is damaged, and 
should be scheduled for 
replacement. 
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